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Strategic decisions implemented over the past two years have established a foundation for strong growth. Balance sheet transactions closed 
during the first quarter of 2017 secured funding for the Company’s 2017 and 2018 business plan, significantly strengthened Perpetual’s 
liquidity and debt repayment profile and restored financial flexibility. Operationally, we ramped up capital investment to drive production and 
adjusted funds flow growth. At the same time, we maintained our vigilance to maximize efficiencies in administration and operations to 
establish a competitive cost structure in all aspects of our operations.  
 
FIRST QUARTER 2017 HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Production and Operations 
 
• Perpetual’s exploration and development spending in the first quarter of 2017 totaled $24.6 million. Capital expenditures included drilling 

ten (9.3 net) wells, with five (5.0 net) horizontal natural gas wells at Edson, as well as four (3.3 net) horizontal heavy oil wells and one 
(1.0 net) shallow horizontal natural gas well at Mannville.  

 
• Average production of 8,143 boe/d was flat compared to the fourth quarter of 2016 as natural declines were offset by increased 

production driven by the ramp up of capital investment subsequent to the sale of high liability shallow gas assets on October 1, 2016 
(the “Shallow Gas Disposition”). Production for the quarter was down 56% from the first quarter of 2016 primarily as a result of the loss 
of approximately 6,500 boe/d related to the disposed shallow gas assets and natural production declines as capital spending was 
constrained throughout 2016 due to low commodity prices. 

 
• Total production and operating expenses decreased 68% to $4.6 million during the first quarter of 2017 compared to $14.4 million 

recorded during the same period in 2016. This decrease reflected the impact of the Shallow Gas Disposition, continued efficiencies 
realized through the Company-owned and operated gas plant at East Edson and company-wide cost saving initiatives. Production and 
operating expenses on a unit-of-production basis were $6.28/boe, a decrease of 27% from the first quarter of 2016, and are expected to 
decrease further through the remainder of 2017 as production grows through capital investment.  

 
• During the three months ended March 31, 2017, Perpetual spent $0.6 million (Q1 2016 - $1.1 million) on abandonment and reclamation 

projects, mainly in eastern Alberta.  
 

Financial Highlights 
 
• Perpetual completed a number of financing transactions during the first quarter which collectively increased the Company’s liquidity by 

$68 million, significantly improving its debt repayment profile and providing funding for its growth-oriented capital program. 
 

• Realized revenue of $18.9 million was 42% lower than the first quarter of 2016 due to the combined effect of an $8.0 million realized 
gain on derivatives in the 2016 period (Q1 2017 - $0.7 million) with the decrease in 2017 period production, partially offset by increased 
commodity prices. 
  

• AECO Monthly Index prices averaged $2.79/GJ, 40% higher as compared to the first quarter of 2016. Perpetual’s natural gas price before 
derivatives of $3.43/Mcf was up 52% from $2.25/Mcf in the 2016 period. Perpetual’s average realized gas price, including derivatives, 
increased 60% to $5.04/Mcf for the first quarter of 2017 from $3.15/Mcf in 2016. The Corporation’s first quarter 2017 realized natural 
gas price includes $4.9 million of gains realized on crystallizations of contracts before maturity, $0.2 million of realized gains on other 
natural gas fixed price contracts and $0.8 million of revenue realized through management of third party physical gas volumes related to 
marketing arrangements entered into during prompt months.  

• Perpetual’s 2017 first quarter oil price, before derivatives, of $43.72/bbl increased 98% compared to the same period in 2016, due 
primarily to higher benchmark West Texas Intermediate (“WTI”) prices offset by changes in $CAD/$USD exchange rates. Perpetual’s 
realized oil price of $31.39/bbl, including derivatives, was lower than the price before derivatives due to losses of $0.1 million recorded 
on financial crude oil derivative contracts and $0.9 million of losses realized on crystallizations of contracts before maturity. 

• Perpetual’s realized average natural gas liquids (“NGL”) price for the first quarter of 2017 reached $49.70/bbl, up 69% from the first 
quarter of 2016, reflecting an increase in all NGL component prices as excess North American inventory levels began to stabilize. 

• Royalty expenses for the quarter were $3.1 million, representing an increase in the effective combined average royalty rate on revenue 
to 17.1% from 9.2% in the first quarter of 2016. Average crown royalty rates increased to 2.6% in 2017 compared to 1.2% in the first 
quarter of 2016, as a result of the disposition of lower net royalty assets sold as part of the Shallow Gas Disposition combined with 
higher Alberta natural gas reference prices and higher oil prices. The East Edson joint venture royalty of 5.6 MMcf/d plus associated oil 
and NGL represented a larger percentage of reduced production in the first quarter given the impact of the Shallow Gas Disposition and 
the lack of capital spending in 2016. 
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• Operating netbacks of $13.91/boe in the first quarter of 2017 were 72% higher than in first quarter 2016 ($8.11/boe), reflecting the 
positive impact of high grading the asset base through the Shallow Gas Disposition. Improved operating netbacks were driven by the 
32% ($6.25/boe) increase in realized revenue per boe due to higher heat content gas sales and higher commodity prices combined with 
the positive impact of lower operating and transportation costs per boe, partially offset by higher royalties. 
 

• Cash interest expense in the quarter decreased 73% to $1.9 million (Q1 2016 – $6.9 million), primarily driven by the reduction in senior 
notes outstanding. 

 
• Despite flat production compared to the fourth quarter of 2016 and a 56% decline from the first quarter of 2016, adjusted funds flow 

grew to $5.1 million, compared to $3.3 million in the previous quarter and a nominal amount for the first quarter in 2016.  
 
• The Company recorded a net loss for the first quarter of 2017 of $14.2 million, compared to net income of $32.8 million in the 

comparative period in 2016. The loss was primarily driven by the $11.2 million decrease in the mark-to-market value of its TOU share 
investment (Q1 2016 - gain of $34.0 million) and a $3.2 million reduction in the market value of marketing contracts in relation to the 
Shallow Gas Disposition. 

 
During the first quarter of 2017, significant progress was made to advance Perpetual’s top four strategic priorities for 2017 which include: 
 

1. Grow value of Greater Edson liquids-rich gas; 
2. Optimize value potential of Eastern Alberta assets; 
3. Advance high impact opportunities; and 
4. Optimize balance sheet for growth.  

 
Grow  value of Greater Edson liquids-rich gas 
 
• Close to 75% of total exploration and development spending was concentrated on liquids-rich gas projects at East Edson for $18.5 

million. Capital activity included the drilling of five (5.0 net) Wilrich horizontal wells, frac and tie-in operations of three wells, including 
one drilled in the fourth quarter of 2016, as well as lease construction and tie-in of pad locations in preparation for drilling in the 
remainder of 2017. An early spring break-up delayed planned frac operations which will now be completed during the second quarter of 
2017. The three wells waiting on completion are all on the same pad site which is already tied-in, therefore sales through the plant will 
be established immediately following a short post-frac clean-up period.  

• Drilling costs in the first quarter were reduced by 30% per well from previous drilling programs as a result of successful well design 
changes. 

• The residual impacts of minimal capital spending throughout 2016 were evident at East Edson as natural production declines were 
stabilized with the startup of new wells later in the first quarter of 2017.  Production at East Edson remained relatively flat compared to 
the fourth quarter of 2016 at approximately 6,200 boe/d. Drilling at East Edson began ramping up in late 2016 with three of six wells 
coming online in mid-February and late March.  

• Drilling will recommence after break-up to continue to grow production at East Edson, with the drilling of up to an additional eight wells. 
The completion of the remaining three drilled wells and continuation of the drilling program to the end of 2017 is anticipated to re-
establish production levels to the capacity of the Company-owned infrastructure approaching 60 to 65 MMcf/d plus associated liquids by 
year-end 2017. 

• Perpetual’s focus on reducing costs and maximizing efficiencies in operations has resulted in a sustainable cost structure for the 
Company’s East Edson assets with operating costs averaging $3.63/boe during the first quarter of 2017.  

 
Optimize value potential of Eastern Alberta assets 
 
• Capital spending in eastern Alberta comprised the remaining 25% of capital spending in the first quarter of 2017 ($6.1 million).  

• Four (3.3 net) horizontal heavy oil wells at Mannville were successfully drilled, completed, equipped and tied-in, three of which were 
exploratory. The drilling program resulted in two new oil pool discoveries for the Company. The development well is on-stream and 
producing banked oil as expected from waterflood operations. The three exploratory wells are equipped with two currently producing. 
Mechanical cleanouts are planned in May for two of the wells with suspected sand issues. The commercial viability of the future 
development of the newly discovered pools will be evaluated through the second quarter. Contingent upon production performance from 
the two horizontal exploratory heavy oil wells in one of the new pools, up to four development wells may be drilled in the second half of 
2017.  

• First quarter 2017 capital program also included expenditures for high return conventional shallow gas workovers and recompletions as 
well as waterflood operations. 

• Waterflood activities to arrest production declines, increase heavy oil recoveries and improve netbacks continued to be optimized during 
the first quarter of 2017. Positive waterflood response has been observed in several heavy oil pools where producing gas-oil ratios are 
declining and oil production rates have stabilized and in some cases are improving with the increasing pressure support. 

 
• Lower crude oil production in eastern Alberta of 859 bbl/d reflected similar declines at Mannville as production increases from wells 

drilled in the first quarter were not impactful on the quarter as wells came on in late March. April heavy oil production is over 1,000 bbl/d 
as the positive impacts of the new wells and two waterflood injector conversions are starting to be seen.  

 
• Gas production of 6.5 MMcf/d was up 44% relative to the preceding fourth quarter of 2016, driven by positive results from the 

conventional shallow gas workover and recompletion program initiated late in 2016 and continuing into the first quarter. Payout from 
these high capital efficiency production addition activities is forecast in aggregate to occur during calendar year 2017.  
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• Production and operating expenses in eastern Alberta were $16.18/boe, reflecting the combination of reduced volumes and increased 

downhole work to replace pumps and rods to restore production from several heavy oil wells that went down during the quarter. The 
Company continues to prioritize cost reductions on its eastern Alberta assets, including a focus on municipal property taxes which 
represent a significant portion of fixed operating costs as the tax base assessment is dramatically misrepresentative of the actual tangible 
property value.  

 
• Perpetual spent $0.6 million (Q1 2016 - $1.1 million) on abandonment and reclamation projects, primarily in eastern Alberta. Plans are in 

place to execute an internally-managed asset-retirement program at Mannville in the second half of 2017 targeting well abandonments, 
pipeline discontinuations and abandonments, as well as reclamation work to reduce mineral and surface lease rental payments, 
maintenance costs and high municipal taxes associated with the linear property in the Mannville area. Up to $3.5 million is budgeted for 
these activities for 2017.  

 
Advance high impact opportunities 
 
• The two horizontal wells drilled during the fourth quarter of 2016 and the first quarter of 2017 to evaluate drilling and completion well 

designs and reservoir performance to advance the understanding of the shallow shale gas play in the Viking and Colorado formations, 
are on production at low rates and are being evaluated. The Viking gas well has not yet been fully fracture stimulated with those 
operations being planned for the second quarter of 2017. Completion and evaluation operations are ongoing with more definitive results 
expected later in the third quarter of 2017. 

• Perpetual continued to produce the fourth cycle in the cyclic heat stimulation ("CHS") test at Panny to advance phase 1 of its low 
pressure electro-thermally assisted drive ("LEAD") process pilot project targeting bitumen recovery from the Bluesky formation. The CHS 
test thus far is yielding valuable insights regarding reservoir performance, the functionality of the electrical heating cable and other 
operational considerations. High quality data continues to be gathered for refinement of a potential commercial development plan and 
economic model. 

Optimize balance sheet for grow th 
 
• During the first quarter, 180,000 Tourmaline Oil Corp. (“TOU”) shares were sold at $31.63 per TOU share for net cash proceeds of $5.7 

million. At March 31, 2017, the balance of TOU shares outstanding was 1.67 million with a market value of $49.4 million ($29.65/share). 

• Perpetual partially repaid and refinanced the TOU share put option margin loan previously maturing in March 2017, reducing the loan 
amount outstanding to $18.9 million and extending the maturity to August 1, 2017.  

• In January, $17.4 million aggregate principal amount of existing senior notes maturing in 2018 and 2019 were exchanged for new 8.75% 
senior notes having an extended maturity date of January 23, 2022 (the “2022 Senior Notes”). 

• On March 14, 2017, a $45 million senior secured term loan facility (the “Term Loan”) with Alberta Investment Management Corporation 
(“AIMCo.”) was closed, bearing annual interest at 8.1% and maturing in March 2021. The initial draw on the Term Loan was $35 million 
with the remaining $10 million to be drawn prior to November 30, 2017. In addition, for no additional consideration, 5.4 million warrants 
were issued which entitle AIMCo. to acquire common shares on a one for one basis for a period of up to three years, at an exercise price 
of $2.34 per share. 

• Concurrent with the establishment of the Term Loan, Perpetual issued equity units consisting of 5.1 million common shares and 1.1 
million additional warrants at $1.75 per equity unit for aggregate gross proceeds of $9 million. 

• In March 2017, the Company’s reserve based credit facility was amended and restated providing for an increase of $14 million to restore 
the total borrowing capacity to $20 million and extending the maturity to October 31, 2017. The borrowing base is subject to 
redetermination by the lender prior to May 31, 2017. 

• A notice for the early redemption at par of all of the $27.6 million aggregate outstanding principal amount of its 8.75% senior notes 
maturing March 15, 2018 (the “2018 Senior Notes”) was issued on March 15, 2017. Subsequent to the end of the quarter, on April 17, 
2017, Perpetual completed the early repayment of $27.1 million of the 2018 Senior Notes in cash and the remaining $0.5 million 
outstanding were exchanged for new 2022 Senior Notes at the election of the noteholders.  

• Total net debt at March 31, 2017 stood at $64.5 million, net of the market value of TOU shares held.  After giving effect to the early 
repayment of the 2018 Senior Notes, approximately 50% of Perpetual’s debt outstanding matures in 2021 or later. 

• Available liquidity, comprised of cash on hand along with undrawn amounts available under the reserve based credit facility and the 
Term Loan was approximately $37 million. 

 
• Based on current operating and financing assumptions, commodity price hedges in place and the forward market for oil and natural gas 

prices, Perpetual forecasts 2017 adjusted funds flow of approximately $33 to $40 million.  
 
• Incorporating the current market value of 1.67 million TOU shares held of $28 per share, year-end 2017 total net debt of approximately 

$85 to $90 million is forecast, with a corresponding net debt to trailing twelve months adjusted funds flow ratio of approximately 2.5.  
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OUTLOOK 
 
Please refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 2017 Outlook” on page 7 of this first quarter 2017 report. 
 
 

 
Susan Riddell Rose 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
May 9, 2017 
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(1) These are non-GAAP measures. Please refer to "Non-GAAP Measures" below. 
(2) Based on weighted average basic common shares outstanding for the period. 
(3) Includes geological and geophysical expenditures. 
(4) Common shares outstanding amounts are presented net of shares held in trust. 
(5) Production amounts are based on the Corporation’s interest before royalty expense. 

  

Financial and Operating Highlights  
 

 
Three months ended  March 31, 

($Cdn thousands except volume and per share amounts)    2017 2016  Change 

Financial       
Oil and natural gas revenue     18,158 24,694 (26%) 
Cash flow from (used in) operating activities    (2,289) (6,770) (66%) 
Adjusted funds flow(1)     5,110 48  n/a 

Per share(1)(2)             0.09  0.00  n/a 
Net earnings (loss)    (14,172) 32,764 (143%) 

Per share - basic(2)     (0.26)  0.72 (136%) 
Per share - diluted(2)     (0.26)  0.70 (137%) 

Total assets       389,739 645,342 (40%) 

Term loan, at principal amount      35,000 –  n/a 
Carrying amount of TOU share margin loans    35,039 62,100 (44%) 
Senior notes, at principal amount    60,573 275,000 (78%) 
Carrying value of marketable securities    (49,440) (171,875) (71%) 
Adjusted working capital surplus(1)    (16,714) (16,068) 4% 

Net debt(1)    64,458 149,157 (57%) 

Net capital expenditures       
Exploration and development and other(3)    24,590 4,829 409% 
Dispositions, net of acquisitions    (228) (6,466) (96%) 

Net capital expenditures    24,362 (1,637) 1,588% 

Common shares outstanding (thousands)(4)       
End of period     58,990 52,117 (13%) 
Weighted average - basic     54,468 45,573 (20%) 
Weighted average - diluted     54,468 47,022 (16%) 

Operating       
Average production       

Natural gas (MMcf/d)(5)     40.7 98.2 (59%) 
Oil and NGL (bbl/d)(5)     1,356 2,010 (33%) 

Total (boe/d)      8,143 18,378 (56%) 

Average prices        
Natural gas, before derivatives ($/Mcf)      3.43 2.25 52% 
Natural gas, including derivatives ($/Mcf)      5.04 3.15 60% 
Oil, before derivatives ($/bbl)     43.72 22.08 98% 
Oil, including derivatives ($/bbl)     31.39 33.90 (7%) 
NGL ($/bbl)     49.70 29.33 69% 

Drilling (wells drilled gross/net)        
Gas     6/6.0 1/1.0  
Oil     4/3.3 –  

Total     10/9.3 1/1.0  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The following is management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of Perpetual Energy Inc.’s (“Perpetual”, the “Company” or the “Corporation”) 
operating and financial results for the three months ended March 31, 2017 as well as information and estimates concerning the Corporation’s 
future outlook based on currently available information. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s condensed 
interim consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for the three months ended March 31, 2017 as well as audited consolidated 
financial statements and accompanying notes for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. The MD&A should be read in conjunction 
with the Corporation’s MD&A for the year ended December 31, 2016 as disclosure which is unchanged from the December 31, 2016 MD&A 
has not been duplicated herein. The Corporation’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") which require publicly accountable enterprises to prepare their financial statements using 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Readers are referred to the advisories for additional information regarding forecasts, 
assumptions and other forward-looking information contained in the “Forward Looking Information and Statements” section of this MD&A. 
The date of this MD&A is May 8, 2017. 
 
Certain financial measures referred to in this MD&A are not prescribed by IFRS. See “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for information regarding 
the following non-GAAP financial measures used in this MD&A: “adjusted funds flow”, “operating netback”, “realized revenue”, “gas over 
bitumen net of payments”, “adjusted working capital deficiency (surplus)”, “net debt”, “net bank debt” and “total capitalization”. 
 
NATURE OF BUSINESS: Perpetual is an oil and natural gas exploration, production and marketing company headquartered in Calgary, 
Alberta. Perpetual operates a diversified asset portfolio, including liquids-rich natural gas assets in the deep basin of west central Alberta, 
heavy oil and shallow natural gas in eastern Alberta, with longer term opportunities through undeveloped oil sands leases in northern Alberta. 
Additional information on Perpetual, including the most recently filed Annual Information Form (“AIF”), can be accessed at www.sedar.com or 
from the Corporation’s website at www.perpetualenergyinc.com. 
 
FIRST QUARTER 2017 HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Perpetual focused on four key strategic priorities during the first quarter of 2017: 
 

• Grow the value of Greater Edson liquids-rich gas; 
• Optimize the value potential of Eastern Alberta assets; 
• Advance high impact opportunities; and  
• Optimize the balance sheet for growth.  

 
Perpetual completed a number of financing transactions during the first quarter which collectively increased the Company’s liquidity by $68 
million, significantly improving its debt repayment profile and providing funding for its growth-oriented capital program.  Subsequent to the 
end of the quarter, on April 17, 2017, Perpetual completed the early repayment at par of $27.1 million 8.75% senior notes that were 
scheduled to mature on March 15, 2018 (the “2018 Senior Notes”) and the remaining $0.5 million outstanding were exchanged for new 
8.75% senior notes maturing on January 23, 2022. (the “2022 Senior Notes”).   Refer to the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section of this 
MD&A for details of financing transactions completed. After giving effect to the early repayment of the 2018 Senior Notes, approximately 50% 
of Perpetual’s debt outstanding matures in 2021 or later and available liquidity comprised of cash on hand along with undrawn amounts 
available under the $20 million reserve based, revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) and the $45 million senior secured term loan 
facility (the “Term Loan”) was approximately $37 million. 
 
During the first quarter of 2017, capital spending ramped up following a period of minimal investment due to low commodity prices in 2016, 
reaching $24.6 million, a five-fold increase over the prior year period.  Drilling and completion activity was focused at East Edson, comprising 
75% of capital expenditures. Five Wilrich horizontal wells were drilled.  Three wells were completed, tied in and on production prior to spring 
break-up, including one well that was drilled in the fourth quarter of 2016.  The remaining three wells will be completed and brought on 
production later in the second quarter after spring break-up.  Two well pads were built and associated pipelines were installed during the first 
quarter when construction costs are typically lower which will reduce the time required to bring new wells on production as they are drilled 
and completed later in 2017. Drilling costs in the first quarter were reduced by 30% per well from the same period in 2016 as a result of 
successful well design changes. 
 
Capital spending in eastern Alberta comprised the remaining 25% of capital spending in the first quarter, and included the successful drilling, 
completion, equip and tie-in of four horizontal heavy oil wells in the Mannville area, three of which were exploratory. The development well is 
on-stream and producing banked oil as expected from waterflood operations. The three exploratory wells are equipped with two currently 
producing. Mechanical cleanouts are planned in May for two of the wells with suspected sand issues. The commercial viability of the future 
development of the newly discovered pools will be evaluated through the second quarter. First quarter 2017 capital program also included 
expenditures for high return conventional shallow gas workovers and recompletions as well as waterflood operations.  In addition, two 
horizontal pilot wells were drilled during the fourth quarter of 2016 and the first quarter of 2017 to evaluate drilling and completion well 
designs and reservoir performance to advance the understanding of the Company’s Viking and Colorado shallow shale gas plays. Completion 
and evaluation operations are ongoing with more definitive results expected later in the third quarter of 2017. 
 
First quarter production averaging 8,143 boe/d, was flat compared to the fourth quarter of 2016 as natural declines were offset by increased 
production due to the ramp up of capital investment subsequent to the completed sale of high liability shallow gas assets on October 1, 2016 
(the “Shallow Gas Disposition”). Compared to the first quarter of 2016, total production was down 10,235 boe/d or 56% primarily driven by 
the sale of 6,507 boe/d related to producing assets included in the Shallow Gas Disposition which represented 64% of the period over period 
variance. The remaining first quarter variance was due to natural production declines as capital spending was constrained throughout 2016 
due to low commodity prices. 
 
  

http://www.sedar.com/
http://www.perpetualenergyinc.com/
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Despite flat production compared to the fourth quarter of 2016 and the 56% decline from the first quarter of 2016, adjusted funds flow grew 
to $5.1 million in the first quarter of 2017, compared to $3.3 million in the previous quarter and a nominal amount for the first quarter in 
2016. Improved performance compared to both prior periods reflected higher netbacks related to increased average realized prices and lower 
costs in all aspects of the business. Operating costs during the first quarter of 2017 on a unit-of-production basis were reduced by 27% 
compared to the same period in 2016 demonstrating the Company’s positive results over the past 12 months to affect a sustainable cost 
structure to increase operating netbacks per boe.  
 
OUTLOOK 
 
Success in advancing the Company’s strategic priorities has established a foundation for strong growth in production and adjusted funds flow 
in 2017. Financing transactions closed during the first quarter of 2017 established sufficient liquidity to execute the planned growth-oriented 
capital program and manage debt maturities into 2019 at current commodity prices. The Company will continue its diligent focus on capital 
efficiency improvements and reductions in operating, financing and administrative costs to improve upon the sustainable cost structure 
established through strategic decisions implemented over the past two years.  
 
Based on the total capital spending plan in 2017 of $65 to $70 million, Perpetual expects to exit 2017 at a production rate of 13,000 to 13,500 
boe/d. Weather-related drilling and completion delays have reduced second quarter production forecasts and, depending on timing to resume 
field operations, full year 2017 production is expected to average 10,000 to 11,000 boe/d (85% natural gas). This represents growth in exit 
rate based on average December production of approximately 60% compared to the prior year.   
 
Subject to resumption of activity following spring break-up, the Company is planning to frac three standing horizontal Wilrich wells at East 
Edson in late May or early June. Plans are in place to recommence drilling after break-up to grow production at East Edson, with the drilling, 
completion and tie-in of up to eight additional wells during the remainder of 2017. The one rig drilling program in East Edson is expected to 
re-establish throughput using Company-owned infrastructure approaching the capacity of 60 to 65 MMcf/d plus associated liquids by year-end 
2017. Cleanout operations are also planned at Mannville on the two new heavy oil exploration wells as soon as field conditions allow.  Pending 
results from the two exploratory wells, up to four additional heavy oil wells are planned for the fourth quarter of 2017 in Mannville. 
 
Capital spending during the remainder of 2017 will be funded through a combination of adjusted funds flow, proceeds from the financing 
transactions closed on March 14, 2017 and asset sales, including the potential sale of TOU shares, as required. 
 
In order to protect a base level of adjusted funds flow, Perpetual has commodity price contracts in place in 2017 on an estimated 45% of 
forecast production for the remainder of the year. These include a combination of forward month physical and financial natural gas contracts 
at AECO hub on 27,500 GJ/d to October 2017 at an average price of $3.15/GJ and 32,500 GJ/d for November and December 2017 at an 
average price of $3.07/GJ. Perpetual also has oil sales arrangements on 750 bbl/d protecting a WTI floor price of $USD50.00/bbl.   See 
“Commodity Price Risk Management” section of this MD&A for further details. 
 
Based on these assumptions and the current forward market for oil and natural gas prices, Perpetual forecasts 2017 adjusted funds flow of 
approximately $33 to $40 million. Incorporating the current market value of 1.67 million Tourmaline Oil Corp. shares (TSX – “TOU”) of 
approximately $28 per share, the Company estimates year-end 2017 total net debt of approximately $85 to $90 million, with a corresponding 
estimated net debt to trailing twelve months adjusted funds flow ratio of approximately 2.5 at year end 2017.  
 
FIRST QUARTER FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS 
 
Capital expenditures 
   Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands)   2017 2016 
Exploration and development   24,563 4,794 
Other   27 20 
Capital expenditures   24,590 4,814 
Geological and geophysical costs(1)   – 15 
Dispositions, net of acquisitions(2)   (228) (6,466) 
Total   24,362 (1,637) 
(1) Geological and geophysical expenditures and dry hole costs are expensed directly in the Corporation’s statement of income (loss); they are considered by 

Perpetual to be more closely related to investing activities than operating activities, and therefore are included with capital expenditures for the purposes of 
this MD&A. 

(2) Excludes cash flows from retained shallow gas marketing arrangements. 
 
Exploration and development spending by area 
   Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands)   2017 2016 
West Central   18,525 4,636 
Eastern Alberta   6,038 158 
Total   24,563 4,794 
 
Wells drilled by area 
   Three months ended March 31, 
(gross/net)   2017 2016 
West Central   5/5.0  1/1.0 
Eastern Alberta   5/4.3  – 
Total   10/9.3  1/1.0 
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Perpetual’s exploration and development spending in the first quarter of 2017 totaled $24.6 million.  Capital expenditures included drilling ten 
(9.3 net) wells, with five (5.0 net) horizontal natural gas wells at Edson, as well as four (3.3 net) horizontal heavy oil wells and one (1.0 net) 
shallow horizontal natural gas well at Mannville.  
 
Spending at East Edson, represented 75% of total exploration and development expenditures in the first quarter. East Edson capital activity 
included the drilling of five (5.0 net) Wilrich horizontal wells, frac and tie-in operations of three wells, including one drilled in the fourth 
quarter of 2016, as well as lease construction and tie-in of pad locations in preparation for drilling in the remainder of 2017. An early spring 
break-up, delayed planned frac operations which will now be completed during the second quarter of 2017. The three wells waiting on 
completion are all on the same pad site which is already tied-in, therefore sales through the plant will be established immediately following a 
short post-frac clean-up period. The Company plans to recommence drilling after break up to continue to grow production at East Edson, with 
the drilling of up to an additional eight wells. The one rig drilling program in East Edson is expected to re-establish throughput using 
Company-owned infrastructure approaching the capacity of 60 to 65 MMcf/d plus associated liquids by year-end 2017.  Drilling costs in the 
first quarter were reduced by 30% per well from the same period in 2016 as a result of successful well design changes. 
 
Spending in Eastern Alberta consisted of a four well (3.3 net) horizontal drilling program in the Company’s Mannville heavy oil property and 
one well (1.0 net) targeting the Viking/Colorado shallow shale gas play. The drilling program resulted in two new oil pool discoveries for the 
Company. Contingent upon production performance from the two exploratory wells into one of these new pools, up to four development wells 
may be drilled in the second half of 2017. The two horizontal wells drilled during the fourth quarter of 2016 and the first quarter of 2017 to 
advance the evaluation of the shallow shale gas play in the Viking and Colorado formations, are on production at low rates and are being 
evaluated. The Viking gas well has not yet been fully fracture stimulated with those operations being planned for the second quarter of 2017. 
 
Expenditures on decommissioning obligations  
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, Perpetual spent $0.6 million (Q1 2016 - $1.1 million) on abandonment and reclamation projects. 
Plans are in place to execute an internally-managed asset-retirement program at Mannville in the second half of 2017 targeting well abandonments, 
pipeline discontinuations and abandonments as well as reclamation work to reduce mineral and surface lease rental payments, maintenance costs 
and high municipal taxes associated with the linear property in the Mannville area.    
 
Net income (loss) 

Net loss for the first quarter of 2017 was $14.2 million, compared to net income of $32.8 million in the comparative period. Net loss in the 
first quarter of 2017 was primarily driven by a recorded loss of $11.2 million on its TOU share investment (Q1 2016 - gain of $34.0 million) 
combined with lower gains on derivative commodity hedging contracts of $4.0 million (Q1 2016 – gains of $19.0 million). The net loss during 
the first quarter also included an unrealized loss of $3.2 million on marketing arrangements retained in relation to the Shallow Gas Disposition.   
 
Offsetting the difference in mark-to-market adjustments to the fair value of TOU shares and commodity derivatives, were improvements to 
period-over-period operational performance reflected by a 32% increase in realized prices and a 27% reduction in unit operating costs that 
was partially offset by lower production.  Cash general and administrative costs decreased $2.8 million (48%) due to head count and office 
space reductions following the closing of the Shallow Gas Disposition.  Interest costs decreased by $5.0 million compared to the first quarter 
of 2016, due mainly to the redemption of $214.4 million principal amount of 8.75% senior notes in exchange for TOU shares that was 
completed in the second quarter of 2016. 
  
Cash flow from operating activities  
 
Net cash flow used in operating activities for the first quarter ended March 31, 2017 was $2.3 million, compared to cash flow used in 
operating activities of $6.8 million in the prior year period, as increased realized commodity prices and lower costs detailed above, more than 
offset lower revenue from decreased production volumes. 
  
Adjusted funds flow 
 
Management uses adjusted funds flow and adjusted funds flow per share to analyze operating performance and borrowing capacity. Adjusted 
funds flow is cash flow from operating activities before changes in non-cash working capital, settlement of decommissioning obligations and 
certain exploration and evaluation costs, but after payments on the gas over bitumen royalty financing and payments on restructuring costs.  
Adjusted funds flow is not intended to represent cash flow from operating activities, net earnings or other measures of financial performance 
calculated in accordance with IFRS.  
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Below is a table to reconcile cash flow from operating activities to adjusted funds flow:  
 
  Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands, except per share amounts)   2017 2016 
Net cash flow from (used in) operating activities     (2,289)   (6,770) 
Changes in non-cash working capital     6,308   6,359 
Payments on gas over bitumen royalty financing(1)     (816)   (650) 
Payments on restructuring costs(2)     1,344   – 
Expenditures on decommissioning obligations     563   1,094 
Exploration and evaluation costs(3)     –   15 
Adjusted funds flow     5,110   48 
Adjusted funds flow per share(4)     0.09   0.00 
(1) These payments are indexed to gas over bitumen revenue and are recorded as a reduction to the Corporation’s gas over bitumen royalty financing obligation 

in accordance with IFRS. To present gas over bitumen revenue net of these payments, the Corporation has reclassified these payments from financing to 
operating activities in the calculation of adjusted funds flow. 

(2) Restructuring cost payments include employee downsizing costs and surplus office lease obligations associated with the Shallow Gas Disposition which the 
Company considers to not be related to cash flow from operating activities. 

(3) The Corporation expenses exploratory dry hole costs, geological and geophysical costs, lease rentals on undeveloped properties and the cost of expired 
leases in the period incurred. To make reported adjusted funds flow in this MD&A more comparable to industry practice, dry hole costs and geological and 
geophysical costs are reclassified from operating to investing activities in the adjusted funds flow reconciliation. 

(4) Based on basic weighted average shares outstanding for the period. 
 
For the first quarter ended March 31, 2017, adjusted funds flow was $5.1 million compared to nominal adjusted funds flow in the prior year 
period. Improved adjusted cash flow performance was due to the same factors detailed above that contributed to improved cash flow from 
operations.  
 
Reconciliation of adjusted funds flow to net income 

 Three months ended March 31, 
 

($ thousands) 
2017 

($/ boe) ($ thousands) 
2016 

($/boe) 
Realized revenue(1) 18,905 25.80 32,697 19.55 
 Royalties(2) (3,102) (4.23)  (2,277) (1.36) 
 Production and operating expenses (4,601) (6.28)  (14,369) (8.59) 
 Transportation costs (1,015) (1.38)  (2,499) (1.49) 
Operating netback(1) 10,187 13.91 13,552 8.11 
 Gas over bitumen revenue net of payments 109 0.15  (120) (0.07) 
 Exploration and evaluation – lease rentals(3) (188) (0.26)  (508) (0.30) 
 Cash G&A (3,101) (4.23)  (5,943) (3.55) 
 Interest(3) (1,897) (2.59)  (6,933) (4.15) 
Adjusted funds flow(1) 5,110 6.98 48 0.03 
 Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives 3,246 4.43 11,013 6.59 
 Payments on gas over bitumen royalty financing 816 1.11 650 0.39 
 Exploration and evaluation(4) (1,313) (1.79) (857) (0.51) 
 Share based compensation expense, non-cash (1,532) (2.09) (400) (0.24) 
 Gain (loss) on dispositions (2,191) (2.99) 7,073 4.23 
 Depletion and depreciation (7,125) (9.72) (17,547) (10.49) 
 Finance expense, non-cash 33 0.05 (1,643) (0.98) 

Change in fair value of TOU share investment (11,216) (15.30) 33,954 20.30 
 Net income and dividends from gas storage investment –  – 473 0.28 
Net income (loss) (14,172) (19.32) 32,764 19.60 
(1) See “Non-GAAP measures” in this MD&A. 
(2) Includes $2.0 million in gross overriding royalty payments at East Edson for the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Q1 2016- $1.3 million). 
(3) Excludes non-cash items. 
(4) Includes non-cash exploration and evaluation expense from expired leases and geological and geophysical costs. 
 
Perpetual’s operating netback of $13.90/boe ($10.2 million) in the first quarter of 2017 increased 71% from $8.11/boe ($13.6 million) in the 
comparative period of 2016. This increase was due to the 32% increase in realized prices and the 27% reduction in unit production and 
operating expenses. Improved operating cost performance reflected the impact of the Shallow Gas Disposition combined with improved cost 
performance on retained properties. 
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Production 
   Three months ended March 31, 
   2017 2016 
Natural gas (MMcf/d)     
 Eastern Alberta    6.5  45.4 
 West Central    34.2  52.8 
Total natural gas    40.7  98.2 
Crude oil (bbl/d)     
 Eastern Alberta(1)    859  1,168 
 West Central    18  6 
Total crude oil    877  1,174 
Total NGL (bbl/d)(2)    479  836 
Total production (boe/ d)    8,143  18,378 
(1) Primarily Mannville heavy oil. 
(2) Primarily West Central liquids-rich gas. 
 
First quarter production averaged 8,143 boe/d, down 10,235 boe/d or 56% from the prior year period production of 18,378 boe/d, due to the 
sale of 6,507 boe/d related to producing assets included in the Shallow Gas Disposition which represented 64% of the period over period 
variance. The remaining variance was due to natural production declines as capital spending was constrained in 2016 due to low commodity 
prices. 
 
The residual impacts of minimal capital spending throughout 2016 were evident at East Edson as natural production declines were stabilized 
with the startup of new wells later in the first quarter of 2017.  Natural gas production at East Edson decreased by 35% from the prior year 
period level but remained flat compared to the fourth quarter of 2016.  Drilling at East Edson began ramping up in late 2016 with three wells 
coming on stream during the first quarter of 2017, however, the full impact of those wells were not seen in the quarter as wells came online 
in mid-February and late March. The completion of the remaining three drilled wells and continuation of the drilling program to the end of 
2017 is anticipated to re-establish production levels to the capacity of the Company-owned infrastructure approaching 60 to 65 MMcf/d plus 
associated liquids by year-end 2017. Lower crude oil production in Eastern Alberta reflected similar declines at Mannville as production 
increases from wells drilled in the first quarter were not impactful on the quarter as wells came on in late March.  April oil production is over 
1,000 bbl/d oil as the positive impacts of the new wells and two waterflood injector conversions are starting to be seen.  
 
Commodity Prices 
   Three months ended March 31, 
   2017 2016 
Reference prices     
 AECO Monthly Index ($/GJ)    2.79  2.00 
 AECO Monthly Index ($/Mcf)(1)    2.94  2.12 
 AECO Daily Index ($/GJ)    2.55  1.74 
 AECO Daily Index ($/Mcf)(1)    2.69  1.84 
 Alberta Gas Reference Price ($/GJ)(2)    2.46  1.78 
 West Texas Intermediate (“WTI”) light oil (US$/bbl)    51.92  33.45 
 Western Canadian Select (“WCS”) differential (US$/bbl)    (14.57)  (14.24) 
    WTI and WCS combined fixed price ($CAD/bbl)(3)    49.41  26.41 
Average Perpetual prices     
Natural gas     
 Before derivatives ($/Mcf)(4)    3.43  2.25 
 Percent of AECO Monthly Index    119  100 
 Including derivatives ($/Mcf)    5.04  3.15 
 Percent of AECO Monthly Index    175  139 
Oil      
 Before derivatives ($/bbl)    43.72  22.08 
 Including derivatives ($/bbl)    31.39  33.90 
Natural gas liquids (“NGL”) ($/bbl)    49.70  29.33 
(1) Converted from $/GJ using a standard conversion rate of 1.06 GJ:1 Mcf. 
(2) Alberta Gas Reference Price is the price used to calculate Alberta Crown royalties. 
(3) Derived internally using the Bank of Canada average US$ to $CAD foreign exchange rate of 1.32 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Q1 2016 - 

1.37). 
(4) Natural gas price before derivatives includes physical forward sales contracts for which delivery was made during the reporting period but excludes realized 

gains and losses on financial derivatives. 
 
Increases in benchmark prices on all commodities resulted in a positive effect to first quarter 2017 realized pricing compared to the prior year 
period. Average AECO Monthly Index pricing of $2.79/GJ in the first quarter of 2017 was 40% higher than $2.00/GJ for the same period in 
2016, reflecting the year-on-year reduction of natural gas in storage in Alberta and generally in North America. The reduction of natural gas 
storage levels was a result of higher heating demand despite warm winter weather, increases in baseload natural gas demand in the United 
States from LNG exports, additional power generation, and increased Mexican exports.  
 
WTI oil prices rallied from the lows of US$33.45/bbl during the first quarter of 2016 to average US$51.92/bbl for the quarter ended March 31, 
2017, as the supply-demand imbalance dissipated somewhat as a result of declines in light oil production in the United States, OPEC’s 
November 30, 2016 announcement to cut 1.2 million barrels per day of production, along with an additional cut from select non-OPEC 
producers of up to 0.6 million barrels per day, that began in January 2017. 
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Increased AECO Monthly Index prices were reflected in Perpetual’s natural gas price before derivatives of $3.43/Mcf for the end of the first 
quarter of 2017, up 52% from $2.25/Mcf for the same period in 2016 and 17% higher than the AECO Monthly Index price of $2.94/Mcf. Price 
optimization strategies applied to prompt month physical settlements contributed to improved realized prices over the AECO Monthly Index 
price.  
 
Perpetual’s average realized gas price, including derivatives, increased 60% to $5.04/Mcf for the first quarter ended March 31, 2017 from 
$3.15/Mcf in the first quarter of 2016. The Corporation’s first quarter 2017 realized natural gas price includes $4.9 million of gains realized on 
crystallizations of contracts before maturity, $0.2 million of realized gains on other natural gas fixed price contracts and $0.8 million of 
revenue realized through management of third party physical gas volumes related to marketing arrangements entered into during prompt 
months. During the first quarter of 2017, the average conversion ratio for Perpetual’s natural gas production was 1.16 GJ:1 Mcf compared to 
1.13 GJ:1 Mcf in the comparative first quarter of 2016. This increase reflects the larger percentage of total gas production from East Edson, 
which yields higher heat content gas compared to Perpetual’s other production areas. 
 
Perpetual’s 2017 first quarter oil price, before derivatives, of $43.72/bbl increased 98% compared to the same period in 2016, due primarily to 
the 87% increase in WCS pricing. The increase in the average WCS price was primarily driven by higher benchmark WTI prices offset by 
changes in currency as differentials remained relatively flat over the comparative period. Included in Perpetual’s average oil price before 
derivatives are deductions for quality adjustments, loss allowance, terminal fees, and diluent blending fees. In the first quarter of 2017 these 
deductions averaged $6.44/bbl (2016 - $6.05/bbl). 
 
Perpetual’s realized oil price of $31.39/bbl, including derivatives, was lower than the price before derivatives due to losses of $0.1 million 
recorded on financial crude oil derivative contracts and $0.9 million of losses realized on crystallizations of contracts before maturity. 
 
Perpetual’s realized average NGL price for the first quarter of 2017 reached $49.70/bbl, up 69% from the first quarter of 2016, reflecting an 
increase in all NGL component prices as excess North American inventory levels began to stabilize due to increasing exports from the United 
States to Asia and Europe. Perpetual’s average NGL sales composition for the first quarter ended March 31, 2017 consisted of 67% 
condensate, a slight decrease from the prior year period (2016 – 71%).  
 
Revenue 
   Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands, except as noted)                  2017 2016 
Petroleum and natural gas revenue     
 Natural gas(1)    12,563 20,105 
 Oil(1)    3,451 2,358 
 NGL    2,144 2,231 
Total petroleum and natural gas revenue    18,158 24,694 
Realized gains (losses) on derivatives    747 8,003 
Realized revenue    18,905 32,697 
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives    3,246 11,013 
Total revenue    22,151 43,710 
Realized revenue ($/boe)    25.80 19.55 
Total revenue ($/boe)    30.23 26.14 
(1) Includes revenues related to physical forward sales contracts which settled during the period.  
 
Perpetual’s petroleum and natural gas (“P&NG”) revenue, before derivatives, for the three months ended March 31, 2017 of $18.2 million 
decreased 26% from 2016, due to a 56% decrease in average daily production, partially offset by a 32% increase in prices. 
 
Natural gas revenue, before derivatives, of $12.6 million in the first quarter of 2017 decreased 38% from $20.1 million in 2016 reflecting the 
impact of lower production volumes attributable to the Shallow Gas Disposition partially offset by an improvement in natural gas prices. 
 
First quarter 2017 oil revenues of $3.5 million were 46% higher than the same period in 2016 ($2.4 million) due to higher crude oil prices 
despite lower overall oil production as a result of natural declines and limited spending allocated to Perpetual’s crude oil drilling programs in 
2016.  
 
NGL revenue for the first quarter of 2017 of $2.1 million was slightly lower than the comparative period due to lower production offset by 
higher prices. 
 
Realized gains on derivatives totaled $0.7 million for the first quarter of 2017 compared to gains of $8.0 million in 2016. Total gains in the 
current period were comprised of $5.9 million on natural gas derivatives offset by losses of $1.0 million from oil derivatives and $4.2 million of 
losses on forward foreign exchange contracts.  
 
Perpetual recorded unrealized gains on derivatives of $3.2 million during the first three months of 2017 compared to unrealized gains of $11.0 
million for the same period in 2016. Unrealized gains and losses represent the change in mark-to-market value of derivative contracts as 
forward commodity prices and foreign exchange rates change. Unrealized gains and losses on derivatives are excluded from the Corporation’s 
calculation of cash flow from operating activities as they are non-cash. Derivative gains and losses vary depending on the nature and extent 
of derivative contracts in place. Commodity price management contracts are actively managed in accordance with the Corporation’s 
assessment of commodity price risk, committed capital spending and other factors. 
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Royalties 
     

Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands, except as noted)   2017 2016 
Crown    478  302 
Freehold and overriding(1)    2,624  1,975 
Total    3,102  2,277 
Crown (% of P&NG revenue)    2.6  1.2 
Freehold and overriding (% of P&NG revenue)    14.5  8.0 
Total (% of P&NG revenue)    17.1  9.2 
$/boe    4.23  1.36 
(1)  Includes $2.0 million in gross overriding royalty payments at East Edson for the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Q1 2016 - $1.3 million). 
 
Royalty expenses for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 were $3.1 million, representing an increase in the effective combined average royalty 
rate on P&NG revenue to 17.1% from 9.2% in the first quarter of 2016. Average crown royalty rates increased to 2.6% in 2017 compared to 
1.2% in the first quarter of 2016, as a result of the disposition of lower net royalty assets sold as part of the Shallow Gas Disposition 
combined with higher Alberta natural gas reference prices and higher oil prices.  
 
Freehold and overriding royalty rates increased from 8.0% in the first quarter of 2016 to 14.5% in the 2017 period, reflecting an increase in 
natural gas prices and the larger percentage of total production sourced from East Edson wells in the first quarter of 2017.  Pursuant to 
Perpetual’s East Edson agreements, the partner is entitled to a gross overriding royalty equivalent to a maximum of 5.6 MMcf/d of natural gas 
from the East Edson property plus oil and associated NGLs on a monthly basis. The East Edson royalty is calculated based on the daily index 
natural gas price. Excluding royalty payments of $2.0 million under the East Edson overriding royalty arrangement (Q1 2016 - $1.3 million), 
the effective freehold and overriding royalty rate for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was 6.3% compared to 3.9% for the prior year 
period.  
  
Production and operating expenses 
   Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands, except as noted)   2017 2016 
Production and operating expenses    4,601  14,369 
$/boe    6.28  8.59 
 
Total production and operating expenses decreased 68% to $4.6 million during the first quarter of 2017 compared to $14.4 million recorded 
during the same period in 2016. This decrease reflected the impact of the Shallow Gas Disposition, continued efficiencies realized through the 
Company-owned and operated gas plant at East Edson and company-wide cost saving initiatives. Production and operating expenses on a 
unit-of-production basis were $6.28/boe, a decrease of 27% from the prior period, and are expected to decrease through the remainder of 
2017 as natural production grows through capital investment at East Edson. The first quarter saw higher than average well servicing 
requirements in the Mannville heavy oil assets which increased operating costs as well as negatively affecting volumes.  These costs are 
expected to trend lower through the remainder of 2017. 
 
Transportation costs 
   Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands, except as noted)   2017             2016 
Transportation costs    1,015  2,499 
$/boe    1.38  1.49 
 
Transportation costs include clean oil trucking and NGL transportation as well as costs to transport natural gas from the plant gate to 
commercial sales points. Consistent with the decrease in period-over-period production, transportation costs decreased 59% to $1.0 million 
from $2.5 million for the same period in 2016, reflecting lower oil and gas sales volumes combined with lower rates on clean oil trucking. The 
reduction in transportation costs per unit is largely the result of Perpetual’s higher percentage of total gas production from East Edson 
properties, where costs to transport gas averaged $0.21/Mcf compared to an average cost of $0.35/Mcf for the properties related to the 
Shallow Gas Disposition.  
 
Gas over bitumen 
  Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands, except as noted)   2017 2016 
Gas over bitumen royalty credit   925  530 
Payments on gas over bitumen royalty financing(1)   (816)  (650) 
Gas over bitumen, net of payments   109  (120) 
$/boe    0.15  (0.07) 
(1) At March 31, 2017, the fair value of the gas over bitumen royalty financing was estimated to be $6.3 million (December 31, 2016 - $8.3 million). 
 
Perpetual records revenue in relation to gas over bitumen royalty credits received under the Natural Gas Royalty Regulation for natural gas 
wells which have been shut-in pursuant to shut-in orders issued by the Government of Alberta. During the three months ended March 31, 
2017, Perpetual recorded $0.9 million in gas over bitumen revenue; an increase of $0.4 million from the same period in 2016 attributable to 
the higher Alberta gas reference prices, offset by the annual 10% decline in deemed production. 
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Gas over bitumen royalty credits earned in the first quarter of 2017 funded payments of $0.8 million (Q1 2016 – $0.7 million) in relation to 
the 2014 monetization of Perpetual’s future gas over bitumen royalty credits. As part of the arrangement, Perpetual makes monthly payments 
to the purchaser, which from time to time will vary from the actual gas over bitumen credit received in the period due to timing differences. 
The monthly payment commitment expires concurrent with the gas over bitumen credit, with final expiries expected to occur in June 2021.   
 
Under IFRS, the monetization of future gas over bitumen royalty credits was recorded as a financial obligation (“Gas over bitumen royalty 
financing”); however, entitlement to future revenue from gas over bitumen royalty adjustments are not recorded as an asset but as revenue 
with the passage of time as it is earned. As such, gas over bitumen revenue will continue to be recognized separately as revenue in 
accordance with Perpetual’s accounting policies with the monthly payments recognized separately as a reduction to the gas over bitumen 
royalty financing obligation. For purposes of this MD&A, the monthly payments have been included as a reduction to gas over bitumen 
revenue to reflect the substantive monetization of the future gas over bitumen royalty adjustments. During the first quarter of 2017, the gas 
over bitumen royalty financing obligation was reduced by $2.0 million, comprised of payments of $0.8 million and an unrealized gain of $1.2 
million. The gain has been included in non-cash finance expense and represents a decrease in the fair value of the gas over bitumen royalty 
financing obligation as a result of lower forecasted natural gas reference prices. 
 
Exploration and evaluation 
  Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands)   2017 2016 
Lease rentals    188

  
 508 

Geological and geophysical costs(1)    –  15 
Lease expiries    1,313  842 
Total exploration and evaluation    1,501  1,365 
(1) Geological and geophysical expenditures and dry hole costs are expensed directly in the Corporation’s statement of income (loss); they are considered by 

Perpetual to be more closely related to investing activities than operating activities, and therefore are included with capital expenditures for the purposes of 
this MD&A. 

 
Exploration and evaluation (“E&E”) costs include lease rentals on undeveloped acreage, geological and geophysical costs and the write down 
of carrying costs related to lease expiries. E&E costs of $1.5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2017 were 10% higher than the 
same period in 2016 due to non-cash write-downs associated with lease expiries combined with certain leases deemed to no longer be part of 
Perpetual’s future development plans. This increase was partially offset by decreased lease rental costs, largely due to the impact of the 
Shallow Gas Disposition. 
 
General and administrative expenses 
  Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands, except as noted)   2017 2016 
Cash general and administrative expense    3,101  5,943 
Share based compensation expense (non-cash)    1,532  400 
Total general and administrative expense    4,633  6,343 
Cash general and administrative expense ($/boe)    4.23  3.55 
Share based compensation expense (non-cash) ($/boe)    2.09  0.24 
 
Cash G&A expense decreased 48% to $3.1 million in 2017 from $5.9 million in the comparative period. This decrease reflected reductions in 
staffing levels pursuant to the Shallow Gas Disposition along with savings related to reduced consulting fees and on-going cost saving 
initiatives implemented by the Corporation in response to the depressed commodity price environment.  
 
Non-cash compensation expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2017 increased $1.1 million compared to the same period in 2016. 
This increase was the result of performance multiplier adjustments related to performance share rights issued and outstanding in addition to 
the beneficial modification of share based compensation plans following the consolidation of outstanding common shares of the Company on 
the basis of 20 common shares to one common share on March 24, 2016. 
 
Dispositions  
 
Proceeds on dispositions 
  Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands)   2017 2016 
Proceeds on dispositions of oil and gas properties    436 6,466 
Proceeds on retained shallow gas marketing arrangements   538 – 
Payments on fixed portion of retained shallow gas marketing arrangements    (929) – 
Net proceeds on dispositions    45  6,466 
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Loss (gain) on dispositions 
  Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands)   2017 2016 
Realized gain on retained shallow gas marketing arrangements    (538) – 
Unrealized loss on retained shallow gas marketing arrangements    3,157 – 
    2,619 – 
Gains on oil and gas property dispositions    (428) (7,073) 
Loss (gain) on dispositions    2,191  (7,073) 
 
Dispositions during the first quarter of 2017 consisted of gains of $0.4 million related to the sale of certain gross overriding royalties and non-
core undeveloped land for proceeds of $0.4 million. During the first quarter of 2016, Perpetual disposed of certain undeveloped oil sands 
leases and surplus production equipment for cash proceeds of $6.5 million with net gains totaling $7.1 million included in net income. 
Included in the gain were $0.6 million in liabilities related to decommissioning obligations in excess of the carrying value of the assets 
disposed. 
 
The Shallow Gas Disposition which closed during the fourth quarter of 2016 included retained marketing arrangements whereby the Company 
provided floor price protection at $2.58/GJ to the purchaser and retained price participation to the extent average monthly AECO prices 
exceed $2.81/GJ on 33,611 GJ/d through to August 31, 2018. The Company entered into marketing arrangements prior to closing to fix the 
cost of the floor price protection through to March 31, 2018. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on these marketing arrangements are 
recognized as adjustments to gains/losses on dispositions and included as cash flows from investing activities on the consolidated statement 
of cash flows.   
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, Perpetual recorded losses of $2.6 million consisting of unrealized losses of $3.2 million which 
was due to mark-to-market adjustments on the contracts resulting from declining forward AECO monthly prices which were partially offset by 
realized gains of $0.5 million reflecting cash proceeds received for the months during the first quarter of 2017 where AECO monthly prices 
exceeded $2.81/GJ on 33,611 GJ/d.  During the three months ended March 31, 2017, payments of $0.9 million were recorded as a reduction 
to this liability. The liability is settled monthly through physical marketing contracts at a rate equal to $0.295 GJ/d on 35,000 GJ/d. 
 
As at March 31, 2017, the net retained shallow gas marketing arrangements have been summarized as follows: 
 

Term 
Volumes at AECO 

(GJ/ d) 
Floor price  

($/ GJ) 
Ceiling price 

($/ GJ) 
Fair value              

($ thousands) 
April 2017 – August 2018 33,611 – 2.81 2,203 
April 2018 – August 2018 33,611 2.58 – (1,551) 

 
 
Depletion and depreciation 
  Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands, except as noted)   2017 2016 
Depletion and depreciation    7,125  17,547 
$/boe    9.72  10.49 
 
Perpetual recorded $7.1 million of depletion and depreciation expense for the three months ended March 31, 2017 (Q1 2016 - $17.5 million). 
The reduction is primarily due to lower production following the Shallow Gas Disposition. On a per boe basis, first quarter 2017 depletion and 
depreciation expense of $9.72/boe was 7% lower than the comparative period, mainly due to a reduction in estimated future development 
costs.  
 
Finance expenses 
  Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands)   2017 2016 
Cash interest     
 Interest on bank indebtedness    180 218 
 Interest on TOU share margin loans     214 700 
 Interest on Term loan    145 – 
 Interest on senior notes    1,358 6,015 
Total cash interest    1,897 6,933 
Non-cash finance expense     
 Amortization of debt issue costs    94  263 
 Accretion on decommissioning obligations   191

  
917 

 Change in fair value of gas over bitumen royalty financing   (1,239) (1,578) 
 Change in fair value of TOU share margin loans   921 2,041 
Other finance expenses   (33) 1,643 
Finance expenses recognized in net income (loss)   1,864 8,576 
 
Total cash interest expense of $1.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was 73% lower than the prior year period ($6.9 
million). Decreased cash interest on the senior notes is due to the reduction of $214.4 million principal amount of senior notes that were 
swapped in exchange for 4.4 million TOU shares during the second quarter of 2016, resulting in a significant reduction in cash interest 
expense and non-cash debt issue cost amortization. This was offset by a modest increase in cash interest on the $17.4 million principal 
amount of new 2022 Senior Notes outstanding which receive an increased 1% interest to 9.75% through to January 23, 2018. Additional 
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decreases from the prior year resulted from the reduction and restructuring of TOU share margin loans to include put option floor prices 
resulting in lower floating interest charges.  
 
Other finance expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2017 included accretion on decommissioning obligations of $0.2 million (2016 - 
$0.9 million), a gain of $1.2 million on the change in fair value of the gas over bitumen royalty financing (2016 – gain of $1.6 million) and a 
loss of $0.9 million on the change in fair value of the TOU share margin loans (2016 – loss of $2.0 million).  Accretion on decommissioning 
obligations was $0.7 million lower than in the prior year period due to the $128.0 million reduction in decommissioning obligations associated 
with the Shallow Gas Disposition. 
 
Change in fair value of TOU share investment 
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, Perpetual recorded a loss of $11.2 million driven primarily by the change in fair value of TOU 
share investment. This change was due to the 17% decline in the TOU share price over the first quarter.  During the first quarter, 180,000 
TOU shares were sold at $31.63 per TOU share for net cash proceeds of $5.7 million.  At March 31, 2017, the Company owned 1.7 million 
TOU shares (March 31, 2016 – 6.25 million shares).  In the first quarter of 2016, a gain of $34.0 million was recorded reflecting a 23% 
increase in the TOU share price during the period. 
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPTIAL RESOURCES  
 
Perpetual’s strategy includes maintaining a strong capital base so as to retain investor, creditor and market confidence to support the 
execution of its business plans. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions 
and the risk characteristics of its underlying oil and natural gas assets. The Company considers its capital structure to include share capital, 
bank indebtedness, TOU share margin loans, Term Loan, senior notes and adjusted working capital, with value and liquidity enhanced 
through the current ownership of TOU shares. In order to manage its capital structure, the Corporation may from time to time issue equity or 
debt securities, enter into business transactions including the sale of its TOU shares or other assets and adjust its capital spending to manage 
current and projected debt levels. 
 
Perpetual completed the following financing transactions during the first quarter which collectively increased the Company’s liquidity by $68 
million, significantly improving its debt repayment profile and providing funding for its growth-oriented capital program:   

 
• Partial repayment and refinancing of its existing TOU share put option margin loan previously maturing in March 2017, reducing the 

loan amount outstanding by $5.7 million to $18.9 million, extending the maturity to August 1, 2017;  
• Exchange of $17.4 million aggregate principal amount of its existing senior notes maturing in 2018 and 2019 for new 2022 Senior 

Notes; 
• Establishment of the Term Loan bearing annual interest at 8.1% and maturing March 14, 2021. The initial draw on the Term Loan 

was $35 million with the remaining $10 million to be drawn prior to November 30, 2017. In addition, for no additional consideration, 
5.4 million warrants were issued and valued at $0.8 million which entitle the lender to acquire common shares on a one for one 
basis for a period of up to three years, at an exercise price of $2.34 per share; 

• Issuance of 5.1 million common shares and 1.1 million additional warrants at $1.75 per Equity Unit for aggregate gross proceeds of 
$9 million; 

• Extension of the Company’s Credit Facility to October 31, 2017, while providing for a $14 million increase in total borrowing capacity 
to $20 million.  Restricted cash of $2.0 million was released by Perpetual’s lender pursuant to this extension. 

 
On April 17, 2017, Perpetual completed the early redemption of all $27.6 million 2018 Senior Notes with repayment of $27.1 million in cash 
and $0.5 million through an exchange for new 2022 Senior Notes.  After giving effect to the early repayment of the 2018 Senior Notes, 
approximately 50% of Perpetual’s debt outstanding now matures in 2021 or later and available liquidity comprised of cash on hand along with 
undrawn amounts available under the Credit Facility and the Term Loan was approximately $37 million. 
 
These financing transactions, combined with a continued focus on costs savings, provide the Company with enhanced optionality and 
flexibility to manage near term obligations while at the same time, creating opportunities to resume development opportunities to re-establish 
a self-sustaining cost structure. The Company will continue to regularly assess changes to its capital structure and repayment alternatives, 
with considerations for both short term liquidity and longer term financial sustainability.  
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Capital Management 
  
($ thousands, except as noted) March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 
Term loan, measured at principal amount 35,000 – 
Carrying amount of TOU share margin loans 35,039 39,953 
Senior notes, measured at principal amount 60,573 60,573 
Carrying amount of TOU share investment(1) (49,440) (66,343) 
Adjusted working capital deficiency (surplus)(2) (16,714) 3,917 
Net debt(2) 64,458 38,100 
Shares outstanding at end of period (thousands)  58,991 53,681 
Market price at end of period ($/share)   1.70  2.35 
Market value of shares 100,285 126,150 
Total capitalization(2) 164,743 164,250 
Net debt as a percentage of total capitalization 39 23 
Trailing twelve months adjusted funds flow(2) 5,991 920 
(1) The carrying amount of the TOU share investment is based on the March 31, 2017 closing price per the Toronto Stock Exchange ($29.65 per share) and 

1.67 million TOU shares held (December 31, 2016 – 1.85 million TOU shares held with a closing price of $35.91 per share). 
(2) See “Non-GAAP measures” in this MD&A. 

 
At March 31, 2017, Perpetual had total net debt of $64.5 million, up $26.4 million from December 31, 2016. The increase reflects the ramp up 
in capital investment during the quarter funded by the new $35.0 million Term Loan combined with a decrease of $16.9 million in the carrying 
value of TOU shares. This is partially offset by a $20.6 million increase in adjusted working capital mainly driven by cash proceeds received 
through the Term Loan and equity private placement transactions. 
 
Reserve Based Credit Facility 
 
As at March 31, 2017, the Company’s Credit Facility had a borrowing limit (the “Borrowing Limit”) of $20.0 million (December 31, 2016 - $6.0 
million) under which $4.0 million in letters of credit had been utilized (December 31, 2016 - $4.0 million). The Credit Facility matures on October 31, 
2017 with the next Borrowing Limit redetermination occurring on or before May 31, 2017. 
  
Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at its lender’s prime rate or Banker’s Acceptance rates, plus applicable margins and standby fees. 
The applicable margins range between 1.25% and 4.75%. Borrowings are secured by general security agreements covering all of the Company’s 
assets with the exception of TOU shares pledged as security for the TOU share margin loans and certain lands pledged to the gas over bitumen 
royalty financing counterparty. 
 
For the periods ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, if interest rates changed by 1% with all other variables held constant, the impact on interest 
expense and net income (loss) would be nominal, as the Company’s bank indebtedness, subject to floating interest rates, was minimal. 
 
The Credit Facility is subject to a working capital covenant which requires the Company to maintain net working capital plus outstanding letters of 
credit not exceeding the Borrowing Limit. Net working capital includes the sum of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, 
prepaid expenses and unpledged TOU shares less accounts payable and accrued liabilities, accrued interest on senior notes and accrued interest on 
the Term Loan up to the Credit Facility maturity date. The Company was in compliance with all Credit Facility covenants at March 31, 2017.  
 
The Credit Facility also contains provisions which restrict the Company’s ability to pay dividends on or repurchase its common shares. 
 
Term Loan 
 
On March 14, 2017, Perpetual entered into the Term Loan which included the issuance of 5.4 million warrants to purchase common shares.  
 

 March 31, 2017 
Balance, beginning of period  $ –    
Principal amount of Term Loan issued   35,000 
Value allocated to Warrants   (769) 
sue costs   (1,272) 
Amortization of issue costs   29 
Balance, end of period  $ 32,988 

 
The Term Loan matures on March 14, 2021 and bears interest at 8.1% per annum with semi-annual interest payments due June 30 and 
December 31 of each year. The Term Loan contains certain restrictions that limit the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness, make 
restricted payments and dispose of certain assets. 
 
The Term Loan is made available by way of two draws consisting of an initial draw of $35 million completed upon closing with the remaining 
$10 million to be drawn prior to November 30, 2017. Amounts borrowed under the Term Loan that are repaid or prepaid are not available for 
re-borrowing. The Company may not prepay the Term Loan prior to the second anniversary thereof, except with payment of a make whole 
premium.  
 
The Term Loan is secured by a general security agreement over all present and future property of the Company and its subsidiaries on a 
second priority basis subordinate only to liens securing loans under the Credit Facility and TOU shares secured in favor of the TOU share 
margin loan lenders. 
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The Term Loan is subject to the same working capital covenant as the Credit Facility excluding adjustments for interest on the Term Loan up to the 
Credit Facility maturity date. The Company was in compliance with all Term Loan covenants at March 31, 2017.  
 
TOU share margin loans 
 
At March 31, 2017, $18.5 million TOU share put option margin loans mature in August 2017 and $16.5 million mature in November 2017. For 
the August 2017 maturity, 0.9 million TOU shares have been pledged as collateral with a put option floor price of $21.14 per TOU share. For 
the November 2017 maturity, 0.65 million TOU shares have been pledged as collateral with a put option floor price of $27.38 per TOU share.  
 
The TOU share put option margin loans are hybrid financial instruments comprising a debt host with an embedded TOU put option derivative 
related to indexation of the future settlement amount to changes in the market price of TOU shares pledged as collateral. The Company has 
designated the TOU share put option margin loans as financial liabilities which are measured at fair value through profit and loss. For the 
three months ended March 31, 2017, an unrealized loss of $0.9 million is included in finance expense, representing the change in fair value of 
the TOU put options during the year.  
 
Senior notes 
 

   March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 
 

Maturity date 
Interest 

rate Principal Carrying Amount Principal Carrying amount 

2018 Senior Notes March 15, 2018   8.75% $ 27,617 $ 27,531 $ 36,013 $ 35,847 
2019 Senior Notes July 23, 2019   8.75% 15,572 15,425 24,560 24,273 
2022 Senior Notes January 23, 2022    8.75%(1) 17,384 16,885 – – 
   $ 60,573 $ 59,841 $ 60,573 $ 60,120 

(1) Annual interest rate through to January 23, 2018 is 9.75% and 8.75% thereafter. 
 
On January 23, 2017, the Company exchanged $8.4 million and $9.0 million aggregate principal amount of 2018 Senior Notes and 2019 
Senior Notes respectively for $17.4 million new 2022 Senior Notes. Included in the exchange were $3.7 million 2018 Senior Notes and $4.3 
million 2019 Senior Notes held by directors and officers of the Company or entities controlled by them. The 2022 Senior Notes bear a fixed 
rate of 9.75% for the first year of issuance and 8.75% thereafter, and have identical covenants and rights as the existing 2018 and 2019 
Senior Notes. 
 
On April 17, 2017, Perpetual completed the early redemption of $27.1 million aggregate outstanding principal amount of its 8.75% senior 
notes maturing March 15, 2018 and exchanged $0.5 million for an equal amount of 2022 Senior Notes. After giving effect to the early 
redemption and exchange, outstanding senior notes are as follows: 
 

 Maturity date Interest rate Interest payment dates Principal 
2019 Senior Notes July 23, 2019             8.75% January 23 & July 23 15,572 
2022 Senior Notes January 23, 2022 8.75%(1) January 23 & July 23 17,918 
    $ 33,490 

(1) Annual interest rate through to January 23, 2018 is 9.75% and 8.75% thereafter. 
 
The senior notes are direct senior unsecured obligations of the Company, ranking pari passu with all other present and future unsecured and 
unsubordinated indebtedness of the Company. At any time prior to three years before the senior note maturity date, the Company can 
redeem up to 35% of the principal amount of the senior notes at a premium to face value. Within three years of maturity, the Company may 
redeem up to 100% of the senior notes at a premium to face value. Within one year of maturity, the Company may redeem up to 100% of 
the senior notes at the principal amount.  
 
The senior notes have a cross-default provision with the Company’s Credit Facility. In addition, the senior notes indenture contains restrictions 
on certain payments including dividends, retirement of subordinated debt and stock repurchases. The permitted amount of any restricted 
payment is limited to: 
 

i) To the extent the Company’s Consolidated Debt (defined as the sum of the period end balance of bank indebtedness, Term Loan, 
TOU share margin loans and gas over bitumen royalty financing) to trailing twelve months income before interest, taxes, depletion 
and depreciation and non-cash items (“TTM EBITDA”) is less than 3.0 to 1.0, (the “Consolidated Debt Ratio”) the sum of 50% of 
TTM EBITDA from January 1, 2011 to the end of the most recently completed fiscal quarter plus 100% of the fair market value of 
any equity contributions made to the Company during that period less the sum of all restricted payments during that period; and 

 
ii) To the extent the Company’s Consolidated Debt Ratio is greater than or equal to 3.0 to 1.0 pro forma for the proposed restricted 

payment, $50 million plus 100% of the fair market value of any equity contributions made to the Company. 
 
The Company was in compliance with all covenants at March 31, 2017.  
  
At March 31, 2017 the senior notes are presented net of $0.7 million in issue costs which are amortized using a weighted average effective 
interest rate of 9.2%. 
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Equity 
 
At March 31, 2017 there were 59.0 million common shares outstanding which is net of 0.3 million shares held in trust for employee 
compensation programs. Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding for the three months ended March 31, 2017 were 54.5 
million. (March 31, 2016 – 45.6 million basic, 47.0 million diluted).  
 
On March 14, 2017, in conjunction with the funding of the Term Loan, the lender received, for no additional consideration, warrants to 
purchase common shares of Perpetual at a ratio of 120 warrants for every $1,000 committed under the Term Loan, resulting in the issuance 
of 5.4 million warrants. Each warrant entitles the holder to acquire Common Shares on a one for one basis, at an exercise price equal to a 
$2.34 per share at any time prior to March 14, 2020. Provided the volume weighted average trading price of the common shares is greater 
than the exercise price for 60 consecutive calendar days (subject to certain restrictions), Perpetual will have the option to require the warrant 
holder to exercise all or any portion of the warrants at any time thereafter 
 
Further, as part of the equity private placement concurrent with the issuance of the Term Loan, 5.1 million common shares and 1.1 million 
additional warrants were issued for proceeds of $9.0 million, of which $8.9 million has been allocated to share capital and $0.1 million to 
warrants. Directors and officers of Perpetual or entities controlled by them purchased 1.6 million commons shares and 0.4 million warrants for 
proceeds of $2.9 million. 
 
At May 8, 2017 there were 59.0 million common shares outstanding which is net of 0.3 million shares held in trust for employee compensation 
programs. 
 
SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS  
 
($ thousands, except where noted) Q1 2017 Q4 2016 Q3 2016  Q2 2016 
     
Financial     
Oil and natural gas revenues 18,158 17,940 22,268 16,501 
Cash flow from (used in) operating activities (2,289) 4,740 (1,710) (3,396) 
Adjusted funds flow(1) 5,110 3,326 (602) (1,852) 
 Per share – basic 0.09 0.06                    (0.01)                 (0.04) 
Net income (loss) (14,172) 20,379 (10,919) 64,925 
 Per share – basic (0.26) 0.39                   (0.21)  1.25 
  – diluted (0.26) 0.37                   (0.21)  1.23 
Net Capital expenditures     
 Exploration and development and other 24,590 7,069 1,411 1,286 
 Geological and geophysical – (3) – 11 
 Dispositions, net of acquisitions (228) 1,248 (942) (20,052) 
Net capital expenditures 24,362 8,314 469 (18,755) 
Common shares (thousands)     
Weighted average – basic 54,468 52,924 52,253 52,140 
Weighted average – diluted 54,468 54,678 52,253 52,904 
Operating     
Daily average production     
 Natural gas (MMcf/d) 40.7 40.3 75.5  85.2 
 Oil (bbl/d) 877 936 1,052 1,073 
 NGL (bbl/d) 479 467 476 682 
Total (boe/d) 8,143 8,118 14,123 15,959 
Average prices     
 Natural gas – before derivatives ($/Mcf) 3.43 3.31 2.44  1.37 
 Natural gas – including derivatives ($/Mcf) 5.04 2.41 2.12  1.85 
 Oil – before derivatives ($/bbl) 43.72 42.35 38.93  38.47 
 Oil – including derivatives ($/bbl) 31.39 38.95 38.90  39.17 
 NGL ($/bbl) 49.70 46.99 35.80  34.71 
(1) See “Non-GAAP measures” in this MD&A. 
  



 

 
PERPETUAL ENERGY INC. Q1 2017 Page 19 

($ thousands, except where noted)  Q1 2016  Q4 2015  Q3 2015  Q2 2015 
     
Financial     
Oil and natural gas revenues 24,694 33,044 35,460 32,129 
Cash flow from (used in) operating activities (6,770) 11,980 (2,803) 6,674 
Adjusted funds flow(1) 48 362 (2,514) 2,635 
 Per share – basic  0.00  0.05                 (0.33)                   0.35 
Net income (loss) 32,764 (93,539) (67,139) 104,121 
 Per share – basic  0.72 (12.34)  (8.89)  13.94 
  – diluted  0.70 (12.34)  (8.89)  13.29 
Net capital expenditures     
 Exploration and development and other 4,814 831 15,254 13,349 
 Geological and geophysical 15 (93) 16 105 
 Dispositions, net of acquisitions (6,466) 3 (2,630) (21,097) 
Net capital expenditures (1,637) 741 12,640 (7,643) 
Common shares (thousands)(2)     
Weighted average – basic 45,573 7,582 7,549 7,468 
Weighted average – diluted 47,022 7,582 7,549 7,879 
Operating     
Daily average production     
 Natural gas (MMcf/d)  98.2  105.1  105.5  86.0 
 Oil (bbl/d) 1,174 1,278 1,426 1,766 
 NGL (bbl/d) 836 866 741 522 
Total (boe/d) 18,378 19,661 19,758 16,621 
Average prices     
 Natural gas – before derivatives ($/Mcf)  2.25  2.74  2.91  2.80 
 Natural gas – including derivatives ($/Mcf)  3.15  2.92  2.86  3.10 
 Oil – before derivatives ($/bbl)  22.08  33.04  40.58  52.35 
 Oil – including derivatives ($/bbl)  33.90  39.81  41.40  74.33 
 NGL ($/bbl)  29.33  33.68  28.07  38.64 
(1) See “Non-GAAP measures” in this MD&A. 
(2) Common shares and per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the consolidation of outstanding common shares on the basis of 20 

common shares to one common share on March 24, 2016. All common shares are net of shares held in trust. 
 

Commodity price risk management 
 
Perpetual’s commodity price risk management strategy is focused on managing downside risk and increasing certainty in adjusted funds flow by 
mitigating the effect of commodity price volatility. Physical forward sales and financial derivatives are used to manage the balance sheet, to lock in 
economics on capital programs and acquisitions, and to take advantage of perceived anomalies in commodity markets. Perpetual also utilizes foreign 
exchange swaps and physical or financial swaps related to the differential between natural gas prices at the AECO and NYMEX trading hubs and oil 
basis differentials between WTI and WCS in order to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and basis differentials on the 
Corporation’s realized revenue. 
 
The following tables provide a summary of commodity price management contracts outstanding at May 8, 2017. 
 
Natural Gas 
 
The Company has in place open physical natural gas arrangements at AECO as summarized in the table below. Settlements on these physical 
sales contracts are recognized in oil and natural gas revenue. 

Term 

Volumes sold 
(bought) at AECO 

(GJ/ d) 
Average price 

($/ GJ)(1) 
Market prices 

($/ GJ)(2) Type of contract 
April 2017 35,000 2.66 2.46 Physical 
May 2017 26,400 2.78 2.62 Physical 
June 2017 35,000 2.94 2.73 Physical 
July 2017 – October 2017 20,000 3.14 2.77 Physical 
November 2017 – December 2017 32,500 3.07 3.01 Physical 

(1) Average price calculated using weighted average price for net open contracts. 
(2) Market prices for April and May 2017 are based on settled AECO Monthly Index prices. Market prices for subsequent months are based on forward AECO 

Monthly Index prices as of market close on May 8, 2017.  
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The Corporation had entered into financial natural gas sales arrangements at AECO as follows: 
 

Term 

Volumes sold 
(bought) at AECO 

(GJ/ d) 
Average price 

($/ GJ)(1) 
Market prices 

($/ GJ)(2) Type of contract 
April 2017 15,000 2.43 2.46 Financial 
May 2017 7,500 3.16 2.62 Financial 
June 2017 – December 2017 7,500 3.16 2.83 Financial 

(1) Average price calculated using weighted average price for net open contracts. 
(2) Market prices for April and May 2017 are based on settled AECO Monthly Index prices. Market prices for subsequent months are based on forward AECO 

Monthly Index prices as of market close on May 8, 2017. 
 
Crude Oil 

The Corporation had entered into financial oil sales arrangements in $USD as follows:  

Term 
Volumes 

(bbl/ d) 

 
Floor price 

($USD/ bbl) 
Ceiling price 
($USD/ bbl) 

 Market prices 
($USD/ bbl)(1) 

 
Type of 

contract 
April 2017 250 50.00 61.50 51.12 Financial 
April 2017 500 50.00 59.40 51.12 Financial 
May 2017 – December 2017 250 50.00 61.50 47.66 Financial 
May 2017 – December 2017 500 50.00 59.40 47.66 Financial 

(1)  Market prices for April are based on settled WTI oil prices. Market prices for subsequent months are based on forward WTI oil prices as of market 
close on May 8, 2017. 

 
The following table provides a summary of basis differential contracts between WTI and WCS trading: 

Term 
Volumes 

(bbl/ d) 
WTI-WCS differential 

($USD/ bbl)(1) 
Market prices 
($USD/ bbl)(2) 

 
Type of 

contract 
April 2017 500 (15.40) (14.28) Financial 
April 2017 250 (14.85) (14.28) Financial 
May 2017 500 (15.40) (9.70) Financial 
May 2017 250 (14.85) (9.70) Financial 
June 2017 – December 2017 500 (15.40) (13.98) Financial 
June 2017 – December 2017 250 (14.85) (13.98) Financial 

(1) Average price calculated using weighted average price for net open contracts; contracts settle at WTI index less a fixed basis amount. 
(2) Market prices for April and May 2017 are based on settled WTI-WCS differential prices. Market prices for subsequent months are based on forward WTI-

WCS differential prices as of market close on May 8, 2017. 
 
OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Perpetual has no off balance sheet arrangements. 
 
FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the IFRS Interpretations Committee regularly issue new and revised accounting 
pronouncements which have future effective dates and therefore are not reflected in Perpetual’s financial statements. Once adopted, these 
new and amended pronouncements may have an impact on Perpetual’s consolidated financial statements. Perpetual’s analysis of recent 
accounting pronouncements is included in the notes to the consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2016. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Corporation is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. Each regulatory body, including the Toronto Stock 
Exchange and the Canadian provincial securities commissions, has a different set of rules pertaining to corporate governance. The Corporation 
fully conforms to the rules of the governing bodies under which it operates. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
 
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures 
 
There were no changes in the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting during the period beginning on January 1, 2017 and 
ended March 31, 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting. 
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ADVISORIES 
 
NON-GAAP MEASURES: This document contains the following non-GAAP financial measures which do not have any standardized meaning 
prescribed by GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. Non-GAAP measures 
presented in this document should not be viewed as alternatives to measures of financial performance calculated in accordance with GAAP. 
 
Adjusted funds flow: Management uses adjusted funds flow and adjusted funds flow per share to analyze operating performance and 
leverage. Adjusted funds flow is cash flow from operating activities before changes in non-cash working capital, settlement of 
decommissioning obligations and certain E&E costs, but after payments on the gas over bitumen royalty financing and payments on 
restructuring costs. Adjusted funds flow is not intended to represent cash flow from operating activities, net earnings or other measures of 
financial performance calculated in accordance with IFRS. The Corporation previously referred to adjusted funds flow as “funds flow”. 
 
Operating netback: Perpetual considers operating netback an important performance measure as it demonstrates its profitability relative to 
current commodity prices. Operating netback is calculated by deducting royalties, operating costs, and transportation from realized revenue.  
Operating netback is also calculated on a per boe basis using average boe production for the period. Operating netback on a per boe basis 
can vary significantly for each of the Company’s operating areas. 
 
Realized revenue: Realized revenue includes oil and natural gas revenue, realized gains (losses) on financial natural gas, crude oil and 
foreign exchange contracts but excludes any realized gains (losses) resulting from contracts related to the Shallow Gas Disposition. Realized 
revenue, excluding foreign exchange contracts is used by management to calculate the Corporation’s net realized commodity prices taking 
into account monthly settlements on financial crude oil and natural gas forward sales, collars and basis differentials. These contracts are put 
in place to protect Perpetual’s adjusted funds flow from potential volatility in commodity prices, and as such, any related realized gains or 
losses are considered part of the Corporation’s realized price.  
 
Gas over bitumen revenue, net of payments: Gas over bitumen revenue, net of payments, includes gas over bitumen revenue less 
monthly payments on the gas over bitumen royalty financing. This is used by management to calculate the Corporation’s net realized gas over 
bitumen revenue to reflect the substantive monetization of the future gas over bitumen royalty credits. 
 
Adjusted working capital deficiency (surplus): Adjusted working capital deficiency (surplus) includes total current assets and current 
liabilities excluding short-term derivative assets and liabilities related to the Corporation’s risk management activities, current portion of gas 
over bitumen royalty financing, TOU (described below) share investment, current portion of the TOU share margin loans and current portion 
of provisions. 
 
Net debt: Net debt includes adjusted working capital deficiency (surplus), the TOU share margin loans and the principal amount of the Term 
Loan and senior notes reduced for the mark-to-market value of TOU shares held. Net debt is used by management to analyze borrowing 
capacity.  
 
Total capitalization: Total capitalization is equal to net debt plus market value of issued equity and is used by management to analyze 
leverage. Total capitalization is not intended to represent the total funds from equity and debt received by the Corporation upon issuance. 
 
VOLUME CONVERSIONS: Barrel of oil equivalent (“boe”) may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. In accordance with National 
Instrument 51-101 (“NI 51-101”), a conversion ratio for natural gas of 6 Mcf:1 bbl has been used, which is based on an energy equivalency 
conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not represent a value equivalency at the wellhead. In addition, utilizing a 
conversion on a 6 Mcf:1 bbl basis may be misleading as an indicator of value as the value ratio between natural gas and crude oil, based on 
the current prices of natural gas and crude oil, differ significantly from the energy equivalency of 6 Mcf:1 bbl. 
 
FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND STATEMENTS: Certain information and statements contained in this MD&A including 
management's assessment of future plans and operations and including the information contained under the heading “Outlook” may 
constitute forward-looking information and statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws. This information and these statements 
relate to future events or to future performance. All statements other than statements of historical fact may be forward-looking information 
and statements. The use of any of the words “anticipate”, “continue”, “estimate”, “expect”, “may”, “will”, “project”, “should”, “believe”, 
“outlook”, “guidance”, “objective”, “plans”, “intends”, “targeting”, “could”, “potential”, “strategy” and any similar expressions are intended to 
identify forward-looking information and statements. 
 
In particular, but without limiting the foregoing, this MD&A contains forward-looking information and statements pertaining to the following: 
the quantity and recoverability of Perpetual’s reserves; the timing and amount of future production; future prices as well as supply and 
demand for natural gas, natural gas liquids (“NGL”) and oil; the existence, operations and strategy of the commodity price risk management 
program; the approximate amount of forward sales and financial contracts to be employed, and the value of financial forward natural gas, oil 
and other risk management contracts; net income and adjusted funds flow sensitivities to commodity price, production, foreign exchange and 
interest rate changes; operating, general and administrative (“G&A”), and other expenses; the expected impact of the disposition of shallow 
gas assets on future cash flows, the expected impact of cost-saving initiatives on operating and G&A expenses, expected interest savings from 
Security Swap, expected net debt balance after Security Swap, the costs and timing of future abandonment and reclamation, asset retirement 
and environmental obligations; the use of exploration and development activity, prudent asset management, and acquisitions to sustain, 
replace or add to reserves and production or expand the Corporation’s asset base; the Corporation’s acquisition and disposition strategy and 
the existence of acquisition and disposition opportunities, the criteria to be considered in connection therewith and the benefits to be derived 
therefrom; Perpetual’s ability to benefit from the combination of growth opportunities and the ability to grow through the capital expenditure 
program; expected compliance with credit facility and term loan covenants in 2017 and 2018; the retention of, and benefits to be received 
from holding the TOU shares (as defined above); expected book value and related tax value of the Corporation’s assets and prospect 
inventory and estimates of net asset value; adjusted funds flow; ability to fund exploration and development; the corporate strategy; 
expectations regarding Perpetual’s access to capital to fund its acquisition, exploration and development activities; the effect of future 
accounting pronouncements and their impact on the Corporation’s financial results; future income tax and its effect on adjusted funds flow; 
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intentions with respect to preservation of tax pools and taxes payable by the Corporation; funding of and anticipated results from capital 
expenditure programs; renewal of and borrowing costs associated with the credit facility; future debt levels, financial capacity, liquidity and 
capital resources; future contractual commitments; drilling, completion, facilities, construction and waterflood plans, and the effect thereof; 
the impact of Canadian federal and provincial governmental regulation on the Corporation relative to other issuers; Crown royalty rates; 
Perpetual’s treatment under governmental regulatory regimes; business strategies and plans of management including future changes in the 
structure of business operations and debt reduction initiatives; and the reliance on third parties in the industry to develop and expand 
Perpetual’s assets and operations.  
 
The forward-looking information and statements contained in this MD&A reflect several material factors, expectations and assumptions of the 
Corporation including, without limitation, that Perpetual will conduct its operations in a manner consistent with its expectations and, where 
applicable, consistent with past practice; the general continuance of current or, where applicable, assumed industry conditions; the 
continuance of existing, and in certain circumstances, the implementation of proposed tax, royalty and regulatory regimes; the ability of 
Perpetual to obtain equipment, services, and supplies in a timely manner to carry out its activities; the accuracy of the estimates of 
Perpetual’s reserve and resource volumes; the timely receipt of required regulatory approvals; certain commodity price and other cost 
assumptions; the timing and costs of storage facility and pipeline construction and expansion and the ability to secure adequate product 
transportation; the continued availability of adequate debt and/or equity financing and adjusted funds flow to fund the Corporation’s capital 
and operating requirements as needed; and the extent of Perpetual’s liabilities. 
 
The Corporation believes the material factors, expectations and assumptions reflected in the forward-looking information and statements are 
reasonable but no assurance can be given that these factors, expectations and assumptions will prove to be correct. The forward-looking 
information and statements included in this MD&A are not guarantees of future performance and should not be unduly relied upon. Such 
information and statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ 
materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking information or statements including, without limitation: volatility in market prices for 
oil and natural gas products; supply and demand regarding Perpetual’s products; risks inherent in Perpetual’s operations, such as production 
declines, unexpected results, geological, technical, or drilling and process problems; unanticipated operating events that can reduce 
production or cause production to be shut-in or delayed; changes in exploration or development plans by Perpetual or by third party operators 
of Perpetual’s properties; reliance on industry partners; uncertainties or inaccuracies associated with estimating reserves volumes; competition 
for, among other things; capital, acquisitions of reserves, undeveloped lands, skilled personnel, equipment for drilling, completions, facilities 
and pipeline construction and maintenance; increased costs; incorrect assessments of the value of acquisitions; increased debt levels or debt 
service requirements; industry conditions including fluctuations in the price of natural gas and related commodities; royalties payable in 
respect of Perpetual’s production; governmental regulation of the oil and gas industry, including environmental regulation; fluctuation in 
foreign exchange or interest rates; the need to obtain required approvals from regulatory authorities; changes in laws applicable to the 
Corporation, royalty rates, or other regulatory matters; general economic conditions in Canada, the United States and globally; stock market 
volatility and market valuations; limited, unfavorable, or a lack of access to capital markets, and certain other risks detailed from time to time 
in Perpetual’s public disclosure documents. The foregoing list of risk factors should not be considered exhaustive.  
 
The forward-looking information and statements contained in this MD&A speak only as of the date of this MD&A, and neither the Corporation 
nor any of its subsidiaries assumes any obligation to publicly update or revise them to reflect new events or circumstances, unless expressly 
required to do so by applicable securities laws. 
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PERPETUAL ENERGY INC. 
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
 

As at  March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 
(Cdn$ thousands unaudited)   
   
Assets   
Current assets   

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 38,231   $ 2,877  
Restricted cash    –   2,000 
Accounts receivable    12,066   11,473 
Tourmaline Oil Corp. (“TOU”) share investment (note 3)   49,440   66,343 
Prepaid expenses and deposits   818   990 
Fair value of derivatives (note 14)   5,123   8,326 
   105,678   92,009 

   
Fair value of derivatives (note 14)   –   2,351 
Property, plant and equipment (note 4)   237,911   219,886 
Exploration and evaluation (note 5)   46,150   47,159 
Total assets  $ 389,739  $ 361,405 
   
Liabilities   
Current liabilities   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 34,401  $ 21,257 
Fair value of derivatives (note 14)   3,769   9,221 
TOU share margin loans (note 9)   35,039   39,953 
Senior notes (note 10)   27,531   – 
Gas over bitumen royalty financing   2,682   3,390 
Provisions (note 11)   4,265   7,656 
   107,687   81,477 
   

Fair value of derivatives  (note 14)   903   2,023 
Term loan (note 8)   32,988   – 
Senior notes (note 10)   32,310   60,120 
Gas over bitumen royalty financing   3,607   4,954 
Provisions (note 11)   32,457   30,118 
Total liabilities   209,952   178,692 
   
Equity   

Share capital (note 12)   1,336,908   1,327,016 
Shares held in trust    (1,311)   (1,311) 
Warrants (note 12)   923   – 
Contributed surplus   43,430   42,999 
Deficit   (1,200,163)   (1,185,991) 

Total equity   179,787   182,713 
Total liabilities and equity  $ 389,739  $ 361,405 

Subsequent event (note 10).   
 
See accompanying notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements. 
 
 

 

  
Robert A. Maitland 

  
Geoffrey C. Merritt 

Director Director 
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PERPETUAL ENERGY INC. 
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) and Comprehensive Income (Loss) 
 
 Three months ended March 31, 
 2017 2016 
(Cdn$ thousands, except per share amounts unaudited)   
   
Revenue   

Oil and natural gas  $ 18,158  $ 24,694 
Royalties   (3,102)   (2,277) 
   15,056   22,417 
Change in fair value of derivatives (note 14)   3,993   19,016 
Gas over bitumen royalty credit and other   925   530 

   19,974   41,963 
   
Expenses   

Production and operating   4,601   14,369 
Transportation   1,015   2,499 
Exploration and evaluation (note 5)   1,501   1,365 
General and administrative   4,633   6,343 
Loss (gain) on dispositions (note 4a)   2,191   (7,073) 
Depletion and depreciation (note 4)   7,125   17,547 

Income (loss) from operating activities   (1,092)   6,913 
   
Finance expenses (note 13)   (1,864)   (8,576) 
Change in fair value of TOU share investment (note 3)   (11,216)   33,954 
Share of net income of gas storage facility investment   –   473 
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss)    (14,172)   32,764 
   
Income (loss) per share (note 12)   

Basic  $ (0.26)  $ 0.72 
Diluted  $ (0.26)  $  0.70 

 
See accompanying notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements. 
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PERPETUAL ENERGY INC. 
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 
 

 
 
 Share capital Shares held 

in trust Warrants 
Contributed 

surplus Deficit Total equity (thousands) ($thousands) 
(Cdn$ thousands unaudited)        
        

Balance at December 31, 2016 53,681 $   1,327,016  $ (1,311)  $ –  $ 42,999  $  (1,185,991)  $ 182,713 
Net loss – –   –   –    –   (14,172)   (14,172) 
Common shares and warrants issued (note 12) 5,569 9,892   –   923    (1,101)   –   9,714 
Share based payments – –   –   –    1,532   –   1,532 
Balance at March 31, 2017 59,250 $ 1,336,908   $ (1,311)  $ 923  $ 43,430      $ (1,200,163)  $ 179,787        

 
 
 

 
 Share capital Shares held 

in trust 
Share purchase 

rights 
Contributed 

surplus Deficit Total equity (thousands) ($thousands) 
(Cdn$ thousands unaudited)        
        

Balance at December 31, 2015 19,115 $   1,297,911  $ (1,177)  $ 5,290  $ 38,300  $  (1,293,140)  $ 47,184 
Net income – –   –   –    –   32,764   32,764 
Common shares issued (note 12) 33,268 27,407   (162)   (5,290)    –   –   21,955 
Share based payments – –   –   –    400   –   400 
Balance at March 31, 2016 52,383 $ 1,325,318   $ (1,339)  $ –  $ 38,700      $ (1,260,376)  $ 102,303        

See accompanying notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements. 
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PERPETUAL ENERGY INC. 
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
 

 Three months ended March 31, 
 2017 2016 

(Cdn$ thousands unaudited)  
 

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities   
   
Net income (loss)   $  (14,172)  $ 32,764 
Adjustments to add (deduct) non-cash items:   

Depletion and depreciation (note 4)    7,125   17,547 
Exploration and evaluation (note 5)    1,313   842 
Share based compensation expense     1,532   400 
Change in fair value of derivatives (note 14)    (3,246)   (11,013) 
Change in fair value of TOU share investment (note 3)    11,216   (33,954) 
Loss  (gain) on dispositions (note 4a)     2,191   (7,073) 
Finance expenses (note 13)    (33)   1,643 
Share of net income from gas storage facility investment     –   (473) 

Expenditures on decommissioning obligations (note 11)    (563)   (1,094) 
Payments of restructuring costs (note 11b)    (1,344)   – 
Change in non-cash working capital     (6,308)   (6,359) 
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities    (2,289)   (6,770) 
   
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities   
   
Change in Term Loan (note 8)    33,728   – 
Change in TOU share margin loans (note 9)    (5,835)   – 
Change in gas over bitumen royalty financing     (816)   (650) 
Issue costs on senior note exchange    (344)   – 
Common shares and warrants issued (note 12)    8,945   22,117 
Shares purchased and held in trust    –   (162) 
Change in non-cash working capital     (216)   – 
Net cash flows from financing activities    35,462   21,305 
   
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities   
   
Capital expenditures    (24,590)   (4,814) 
Acquisitions    (208)   – 
Net proceeds on dispositions (note 4a)    45   6,466 
Proceeds on sale of TOU share investment (note 3)    5,687   7,354 
Restricted cash    2,000   – 
Change in non-cash working capital     19,247   374 
Net cash flows from investing activities     2,181   9,380 
   
Change in cash and cash equivalents    35,354   23,915 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period    2,877   2,116 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   $ 38,231  $ 26,031 
   

See accompanying notes to the condensed interim consolidated financial statements. 
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PERPETUAL ENERGY INC. 
Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited) 
For the three months ended March 31, 2017 
(All tabular amounts are in Cdn$ thousands, except where otherwise noted) 
 
 
1. REPORTING ENTITY 
 
Perpetual Energy Inc. (the “Company”) is a Canadian corporation engaged in the exploration, development and marketing of oil and natural 
gas based energy in Alberta, Canada. The Company operates a diversified asset portfolio that includes liquids-rich natural gas, shallow natural 
gas and conventional heavy oil producing properties, as well as undeveloped bitumen resource properties. 
 
The address of the Company’s registered office is 3200, 605 – 5 Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta, T2P 3H5. 
 
The condensed interim consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the three months ended March 31, 2017 are 
comprised of the accounts of Perpetual Energy Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries: Perpetual Operating Corp., Perpetual Operating Trust, 
and Perpetual Energy Operating Corp, which are incorporated in Canada.  
 
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 
These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting and do 
not include all of the information required for full annual financial statements. These condensed interim consolidated financial statements 
should be read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016 which 
were prepared in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (“IASB”). 
 
The accounting policies, basis of measurement, critical accounting judgments and significant estimates used to prepare the annual 
consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016 have been applied in the preparation of these condensed 
interim consolidated financial statements. 
 
These condensed interim consolidated financial statements of the Corporation were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of 
Directors on May 8, 2017. 
 
3. TOU SHARE INVESTMENT 
 

  March 31, 2017  December 31, 2016 
 
 

Shares  
(thousands) 

Amount   
($thousands) 

Shares  
(thousands) 

Amount   
($thousands) 

Balance, beginning of period   1,847  $ 66,343   6,500  $ 145,275 
Sold (180)   (5,687)   (250)   (7,354) 
Exchange for senior notes –   –   (4,403)   (130,475) 
Unrealized change in fair value –   (11,216)   –   58,897 
Balance, end of period   1,667  $ 49,440   1,847  $ 66,343 

 
During the first quarter of 2017, the Company sold 180,000 TOU shares at $31.63 per TOU share for net cash proceeds of $5.7 million. 
 
At March 31, 2017, the Company held 1.67 million (December 31, 2016 – 1.85 million) TOU shares with a fair value of $49.4 million 
(December 31, 2016 - $66.3 million) based on a March 31, 2017 closing price of $29.65 per share (December 31, 2016 - $35.91 per share). 
Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2017 included an unrealized loss of $11.2 million (2016 - $34.0 million unrealized gain) 
representing the change in fair value of TOU shares held during the period.  
 
At March 31, 2017, 1.5 million TOU shares (December 31, 2016 – 1.5 million TOU shares) were pledged as security for the TOU share margin 
loans (note 9). 
 
As at March 31, 2017, a $1.00 per share increase in the market price of TOU shares would increase the Company’s after tax net income by 
$1.7 million. The TOU share margin loans detailed in note 9 include put options that effectively protect the Company from potential TOU 
share price decreases on 0.9 million TOU shares below $21.14 per share and 0.65 million TOU shares below $27.38 per share.  
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 Oil and Gas  
Properties 

Corporate 
Assets 

 
Total 

    
Cost    
    
December 31, 2015  $ 2,430,568  $ 7,090  $ 2,437,658 
Additions   14,170   92   14,262 
Change in decommissioning obligations (note 11)   5,213   –   5,213 
Dispositions    (1,838,905)   –   (1,838,905) 
December 31, 2016   611,046   7,182   618,228 
Additions   24,467   27   24,494 
Change in decommissioning obligations (note 11)   664   –   664 
Dispositions    (8)   –   (8) 
March 31, 2017 $  636,169  $ 7,209  $ 643,378 
     
Accumulated depletion, depreciation and impairment losses     
     
December 31, 2015   (2,083,135)   (6,620)   (2,089,755) 
Depletion and depreciation   (54,034)   (283)   (54,317) 
Dispositions   1,738,830   –   1,738,830 
Impairment reversal   6,900   –   6,900 
December 31, 2016   (391,439)   (6,903)   (398,342) 
Depletion and depreciation   (7,074)   (51)   (7,125) 
March 31, 2017 $  (398,513)  $ (6,954)  $ (405,467) 
     
Carrying amount     
     
December 31, 2016 $  219,607  $ 279  $ 219,886 
March 31, 2017 $  237,656  $ 255  $ 237,911 

 
At March 31, 2017, property, plant and equipment included $1.2 million (December 31, 2016 – $1.4 million) of costs currently not subject to 
depletion.  
 
a) Dispositions 
 
Proceeds on dispositions 
  Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands)   2017 2016 
Proceeds on dispositions of oil and gas properties    436 6,466 
Proceeds on retained shallow gas marketing arrangements   538 – 
Payments on fixed portion of retained shallow gas marketing arrangements    (929) – 
Net proceeds on dispositions    45  6,466 
 
Loss (gain) on dispositions 
  Three months ended March 31, 
($ thousands)   2017 2016 
Realized gain on retained shallow gas marketing arrangements   (538) – 
Unrealized loss on retained shallow gas marketing arrangements   3,157 – 
   2,619 – 
Gain on oil and gas property dispositions   (428) (7,073) 
Loss (gain) on dispositions   2,191 (7,073) 
 
Dispositions during the first quarter of 2017 consisted of gains of $0.4 million related to the sale of certain gross overriding royalties and non-
core undeveloped land for proceeds of $0.4 million. During the first quarter of 2016, Perpetual disposed of certain undeveloped oil sands 
leases and surplus production equipment for cash proceeds of $6.5 million, with net gains totaling $7.1 million included in net income. 
Included in the gain was $0.6 million in liabilities related to decommissioning obligations in excess of the carrying value of the assets 
disposed. 
 
The Shallow Gas Disposition transaction which closed during the fourth quarter of 2016 included marketing arrangements whereby the 
Company provided floor price protection at $2.58/GJ to the purchaser and retained price exposure to the extent average monthly AECO prices 
exceed $2.81/GJ on 33,611 GJ/d through to August 31, 2018. The Company entered into marketing arrangements prior to closing to fix the 
cost of the floor price protection through to March 31, 2018. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on these marketing arrangements are 
recognized as adjustments to gains/losses on dispositions and included as cash flows from investing activities on the consolidated statement 
of cash flows.   
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As at March 31, 2017, the net retained shallow gas marketing arrangements have been summarized as follows: 
 

Term 
Volumes at AECO 

(GJ/ d) Floor price ($/ GJ) 
Ceiling price 

($/ GJ) 
Fair value              

($ thousands) 
April 2017 – August 2018 33,611 – 2.81 2,203 
April 2018 – August 2018 33,611 2.58 – (1,551) 

 
5. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION (“E&E”) 
 

 March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 
Balance, beginning of year   $ 47,159     $ 56,407    
Additions   96   318 
Acquisitions   208   12 
Dispositions   –   (6,851) 
Non-cash exploration and evaluation expense   (1,313)   (2,727) 
Balance, end of period  $ 46,150  $ 47,159     

 
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, $0.2 million (2016 – $0.5 million) in costs were charged directly to E&E expense in net 
income (loss). 
 
6. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 
The Company’s goal is to maintain a strong capital base to retain investor, creditor and market confidence and to support the execution of the 
Company’s business plan. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to its capital spending in light of changes in 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its underlying oil and natural gas assets. The Company considers its capital structure to 
include share capital, senior notes, bank indebtedness, Term Loan, TOU share margin loans and net working capital, with value and liquidity 
enhanced through the current ownership of TOU shares.  
 
During the first quarter of 2017, the Company completed a number of financing transactions to strengthen Perpetual’s liquidity and debt 
repayment profile and secure funding for the Company’s 2017 and 2018 business plan. The significant financing transactions are as follows: 
 

• Partial repayment and refinancing of its existing TOU share put option margin loan previously maturing in March 2017, reducing the 
loan amount outstanding to $18.9 million, extending the maturity to August 1, 2017 and increasing the number of shares pledged 
as collateral to 0.9 million TOU shares, with a new floor price on these shares of $21.14 per TOU share (note 9);  

• Exchange of $17.4 million aggregate principal amount of its existing Senior Notes maturing in 2018 and 2019 for new 8.75% Senior 
Notes having an extended maturity date of January 23, 2022 (the “2022 Senior Notes”) (note 10); 

• Establishment of a $45 million second lien senior secured term loan facility (the “Term Loan”) bearing annual interest at 8.1 percent 
and maturing March 14, 2021 (note 8). In addition, for no additional consideration, 5.4 million warrants were issued which entitle 
the holder to acquire common shares on a one for one basis for a period of up to three years, at an exercise price of $2.34 per 
share; 

• Issuance of 5.1 million common shares and 1.1 million warrants to purchase common shares on the same terms and conditions as 
above (collectively, the “Equity Units”) at $1.75 per Equity Unit for aggregate gross proceeds of $9 million; and 

• Extension of the Company’s reserve based, revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) to October 31, 2017, while providing for a $14 
million increase in total borrowing capacity under the credit facility to $20 million (note 7). 

 
Subsequent to March 31, 2017, Perpetual completed the early redemption of $27.1 million aggregate outstanding principal amount of its 
8.75% Senior Notes maturing March 15, 2018 and extended $0.5 million to January 23, 2022 (note 10). 
 
The Company will continue to regularly assess changes to its capital structure and repayment alternatives, with considerations for both short 
term liquidity, investment opportunities and longer term financial sustainability.  
 
7. BANK INDEBTEDNESS 
 
As at March 31, 2017, the Company has a reserve based revolving credit facility (“Credit Facility”) with a borrowing limit (the “Borrowing Limit”) of 
$20.0 million (December 31, 2016 - $6.0 million) under which $4.0 million of letters of credit had been drawn (December 31, 2016 - $4.0 million). 
The Credit Facility matures on October 31, 2017 with the next Borrowing Limit redetermination occurring on or before May 31, 2017. 
  
Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at its lenders’ prime rate or Banker’s Acceptance rates, plus applicable margins and standby fees. 
The applicable margins range between 1.25% and 4.75%. Borrowings are secured by general security agreements covering all of the Company’s 
assets with the exception of TOU shares pledged as security for the TOU share margin loans (note 9) and certain lands pledged to the gas over 
bitumen royalty financing counterparty. 
 
For the period ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, if interest rates changed by one percent with all other variables held constant, the impact on 
interest expense and net income (loss) would be nominal, as the Company’s bank indebtedness, subject to floating interest rates, was minimal. 
 
The Credit Facility is subject to a working capital covenant which requires the Company to maintain net working capital plus outstanding letters of 
credit not exceeding the Borrowing Limit. Net working capital includes the sum of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, 
prepaid expenses and unpledged TOU shares less accounts payable and accrued liabilities and accrued interest on Senior Notes and the Term Loan 
up to the Credit Facility maturity date. The Company was in compliance with all Credit Facility covenants at March 31, 2017.  
 
The credit facility also contains provisions which restrict the Company’s ability to pay dividends on or repurchase its common shares. 
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8. TERM LOAN 
 
On March 14, 2017, Perpetual entered into the Term Loan which included the issuance of 5.4 million warrants to purchase common shares 
(note 12).  
 

 March 31, 2017 
Balance, beginning of period  $ – 
Principal amount of Term Loan issued   35,000 
Value allocated to warrants   (769) 
Issue costs    (1,272) 
Amortization of issue costs   29 
Balance, end of period  $ 32,988 

 
The Term Loan matures on March 14, 2021 and bears interest at 8.1% per annum with semi-annual interest payments due June 30 and 
December 31 of each year. The Term Loan contains certain restrictions that limit the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness, make 
restricted payments and dispose of certain assets. 
 
The Term Loan is made available by way of two draws consisting of an initial draw of $35 million completed upon closing with the remaining 
$10 million to be drawn prior to November 30, 2017. Amounts borrowed under the Term Loan that are repaid or prepaid are not available for 
re-borrowing. The Company may not prepay the Term Loan prior to the second anniversary thereof, except with payment of a make whole 
premium.  
 
The Term Loan is secured by a general security agreement over all present and future property of the Company and its subsidiaries on a 
second priority basis, subordinate only to liens securing loans under the Credit Facility and TOU shares secured in favor of the TOU share 
margin loan lenders.   
 
The Term Loan is subject to the same working capital covenant as disclosed under the Credit Facility excluding adjustments for interest on the Term 
Loan up to the Credit Facility maturity date. The Company was in compliance with all Term Loan covenants at March 31, 2017.  
 
9. TOU SHARE MARGIN LOANS 
 
At March 31, 2017, $18.5 million TOU share put option margin loans mature in August 2017 and $16.5 million mature in November 2017. For 
the August 2017 maturity, 0.9 million TOU shares have been pledged as collateral with a put option floor price of $21.14 per share. For the 
November 2017 maturity, 0.65 million TOU shares have been pledged as collateral with a put option floor price of $27.38 per share.  
 
The TOU share put option margin loans are hybrid financial instruments comprising a debt host with an embedded TOU put option derivative 
related to indexation of the future settlement amount to changes in the market price of TOU shares pledged as collateral. The Company has 
designated the TOU share put option margin loans as financial liabilities which are measured at fair value through profit and loss. For the 
three months ended March 31, 2017, an unrealized loss of $0.9 million (2016 - $2.0 million unrealized loss) is included in finance expense, 
representing the change in fair value of the TOU put options during the year.  
 
10. SENIOR NOTES 
 

   March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 
 Maturity date Interest rate Principal Carrying Amount Principal Carrying amount 

2018 Senior Notes March 15, 2018 8.75% $ 27,617 $ 27,531 $ 36,013 $ 35,847 
2019 Senior Notes July 23, 2019 8.75% 15,572 15,425 24,560 24,273 
2022 Senior Notes January 23, 2022    8.75%(1) 17,384 16,885 – – 
   $ 60,573 $ 59,841 $ 60,573 $ 60,120 

(2) Annual interest rate through to January 23, 2018 is 9.75% and 8.75% thereafter. 
 
On January 23, 2017, the Company exchanged $8.4 million and $9.0 million aggregate principal amount of 2018 Senior Notes and 2019 
Senior Notes respectively for $17.4 million new 8.75% Senior Notes with a maturity date of January 23, 2022. Included in the exchange were 
$3.7 million 2018 Senior Notes and $4.3 million 2019 Senior Notes held by directors and officers of the Company or entities controlled by 
them. The 2022 Senior Notes bear a fixed rate of 9.75% for the first year of issuance and 8.75% thereafter, and have identical covenants and 
rights as the existing 2018 and 2019 Senior Notes.   
 
On April 17, 2017, Perpetual completed the early redemption of $27.1 million aggregate outstanding principal amount of its 8.75% Senior 
Notes maturing March 15, 2018 and exchanged $0.5 million for an equal amount of 2022 Senior Notes. After giving effect to the early 
redemption and exchange, outstanding Senior Notes are as follows: 
 

 Maturity date Interest rate Interest Payment dates Principal 
2019 Senior Notes July 23, 2019            8.75% January 23 & July 23   15,572 
2022 Senior Notes January 23, 2022 8.75%(1) January 23 & July 23 17,918 
    $ 33,490 

(1) Annual interest rate through to January 23, 2018 is 9.75% and 8.75% thereafter. 
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The Senior Notes are direct senior unsecured obligations of the Company, ranking pari passu with all other present and future unsecured and 
unsubordinated indebtedness of the Company. At any time prior to three years before the senior note maturity date, the Company can 
redeem up to 35 percent of the principal amount of the Senior Notes at a premium to face value. Within three years of maturity, the Company 
may redeem up to 100 percent of the Senior Notes at a premium to face value. Within one year of maturity, the Company may redeem up to 
100 percent of the Senior Notes at the principal amount.  
 
The Senior Notes have a cross-default provision with the Company’s credit facility (note 7). In addition, the Senior Notes indenture contains 
restrictions on certain payments including dividends, retirement of subordinated debt and stock repurchases. The permitted amount of any 
restricted payment is limited to: 
 

i) To the extent the Company’s Consolidated Debt (defined as the sum of the period end balance of bank indebtedness, Term Loan, 
TOU share margin loans and gas over bitumen royalty financing) to trailing twelve months income before interest, taxes, depletion 
and depreciation and non-cash items (“TTM EBITDA”) is less than 3.0 to 1.0 (the “Consolidated Debt Ratio”), the sum of 50 percent 
of TTM EBITDA from January 1, 2011 to the end of the most recently completed fiscal quarter plus 100 percent of the fair market 
value of any equity contributions made to the Company during that period less the sum of all restricted payments during that 
period; and 

 
ii) To the extent the Company’s Consolidated Debt Ratio is greater than or equal to 3.0 to 1.0 pro forma for the proposed restricted 

payment, $50 million plus 100 percent of the fair market value of any equity contributions made to the Company. 
 
The Company was in compliance with all covenants at March 31, 2017.  
  
At March 31, 2017 the Senior Notes are presented net of $0.7 million in issue costs which are amortized using a weighted average effective 
interest rate of 9.2 percent. 
 
11. PROVISIONS 

 
a) Decommissioning obligations 
 
The following significant assumptions were used to estimate the Company’s decommissioning obligations: 
 

 March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 
Undiscounted obligations  $ 38,062  $ 37,877 
Average risk free interest rate   2.3%  2.3% 
Inflation rate   1.5%  1.5% 
Expected timing of settling obligations   1 to 25 years  1 to 25 years 

 
b) Restructuring costs 
 

 Employee 
downsizing costs 

Onerous office 
lease contract 

Lease 
inducement 

 
Total 

Balance, December 31, 2016  $ 1,606  $ 2,548  $ –  $ 4,154 
Transferred   –   (1,764)   1,764   – 
Payments   (1,047)   (261)   (36)   (1,344) 
Balance, March 31, 2017   559   523   1,728   2,810 
     
Restructuring costs – current   559   523   216   1,298 
Restructuring costs  – non-current   –   –   1,512   1,512 
Total   $ 559  $ 523  $ 1,728  $ 2,810 

 
On February 1, 2017, Perpetual entered into a new head office lease at its current location for a 98 month period expiring March 31, 2025. As 
consideration, the landlord agreed to release the Company from all remaining obligations under its existing lease with remaining term to 
March 31, 2018 with remaining payments of $1.8 million deferred over the 98 month term of the new lease. This lease inducement is 

 March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 
   
Decommissioning obligations, beginning of period  $ 33,620  $ 159,169 

Obligations incurred   664   177 
Obligations settled   (563)   (3,803) 
Accretion (note 13)   191   2,643 
Obligations disposed    –   (129,602) 
Change in risk free interest rate   –   10,184 
Change in estimates   –   (5,148) 

Decommissioning obligations, end of period   33,912   33,620 
Restructuring costs (b)   2,810   4,154 
Balance, end of period  $ 36,722  $ 37,774      
   
Provisions – current   4,265   7,656 
Provisions – non-current   32,457   30,118 
  $ 36,722  $ 37,774      
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comprised of $1.8 million related to surplus office space which was recognized as an onerous contract provision in 2016. The lease 
inducement will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the 98 month term of the new head office lease. 
 
12. SHARE CAPITAL 
 

  March 31, 2017  December 31, 2016 
 
 

Shares  
(thousands) 

Amount   
($thousands) 

Shares  
(thousands) 

Amount   
($thousands) 

Balance, beginning of period  53,681   $ 1,327,016  19,115  $ 1,297,911  
Issued pursuant to private placement (b) 5,143   8,791 491           839 
Issued pursuant to share based payment plans 426    1,101 807        1,184 
Issued pursuant to share purchase rights –    – 33,268      27,082 
Balance, end of period 59,250   $ 1,336,908  53,681  $ 1,327,016 

 
a) Authorized 

 
Authorized capital consists of an unlimited number of common shares.  
 
b) Warrants and equity private placement 

 
On March 14, 2017, the Company completed a private placement of 5.1 million equity units for gross proceeds of $9.0 million, of which $8.9 
million has been allocated to share capital and $0.1 million to warrants. Each equity unit consisted of 1 common share and 0.21 warrants. 
Included in the issuance were 1.6 million common shares and 0.4 million warrants issued to directors and officers of the Company or entities 
controlled by them, for proceeds of $2.9 million. In addition, 5.4 million warrants valued at $0.8 million were issued in connection with the 
Term Loan (note 8).  Each warrant entitles the holder to acquire common shares on a one for one basis at an exercise price of $2.34 per 
share prior to March 14, 2020. 
 
If the volume weighted average price of Perpetual's common shares is greater than the Exercise Price for 60 consecutive calendar days, 
Perpetual shall have the option to require warrant holders to exercise all or any portion of the warrants at any time thereafter from time to 
time.  
 
c) Per share information 

 
 Three months ended March 31, 
 2017 2016 
(thousands, except per share amounts) 

 
 

Net income (loss) – basic   $ (14,172)  $ 32,764 
Effect of dilutive securities   –   – 
Net income (loss) – diluted  $ (14,172)  $ 32,764 
   
Weighted average shares   

Issued common shares   54,728   45,802 
Effect of shares held in trust   (260)   (229) 

Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic   54,468   45,573 
Effect of dilutive securities   –   1,449 
Weighted average common shares outstanding – diluted   54,468   47,022 

 
  

Income (loss) per share -  basic   $ (0.26)  $ 0.72 
Income (loss) per share -  diluted   $ (0.26)  $ 0.70 

 
In computing per share amounts for the period ended March 31, 2017, potentially issuable common shares through the share based 
compensation plans and warrants were excluded as the Corporation had a net loss. In computing per share amounts for the period ended 
March 31, 2016, 0.9 million potentially issuable common shares through the share based compensation plans were excluded as they had an 
anti-dilutive effect on calculated per share amounts.   
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13. FINANCE EXPENSE 
 

The components of finance expense are as follows:  
 
 Three months ended March 31, 
 2017  2016 
Cash interest   
 Interest on bank indebtedness 180 918 
 Interest on TOU share margin loans 214 – 
 Interest on Term Loan 145 – 
 Interest on Senior Notes 1,358 6,015 
Total cash interest 1,897 6,933 
Non-cash finance expense   
 Amortization of debt issue costs 94 263 
 Accretion on decommissioning obligations (note 11) 191 917 
 Change in fair value of gas over bitumen royalty financing (1,239) (1,578) 
 Change in fair value of TOU share margin loans (note 9) 921 2,041 
Total non-cash finance expense (33) 1,643 
Finance expenses recognized in net income (loss) 1,864 8,576 
 
14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Realized gains on commodity price derivatives recognized in net income for the three months ended March 31, 2017 were $0.7 million (2016 
– $8.0 million). The realized gains on commodity price derivatives for the three months ended March 31, 2017 included early settlement of 
fixed oil contracts and foreign exchange contracts for a loss of $5.2 million which was offset by gains of $4.9 million related to the early 
settlement of natural gas basis differential contracts. 
 
Natural gas contracts 
 
At March 31, 2017 the Company had entered into the following physical fixed natural gas sales arrangements at AECO: 
 

Term Sold/bought 
Volumes  

(GJ/ d) 
Average price 

($/ GJ) 
Fair Value             

($ thousands) 
April 2017 Sold 35,000 2.66 209 
May 2017 Sold 15,000 2.47 (57) 
May 2017 – December 2017 Sold 20,000 3.14 2,163 
November 2017 – March 2018 Sold 12,500 2.94 (36) 

 
At March 31, 2017 the Company had entered into the following financial fixed natural gas sales arrangements at AECO: 
 

Term Sold/bought 
Volumes  

(GJ/ d) 
Average price 

($/ GJ) 
Fair Value             

($ thousands) 
April 2017 Sold 15,000 2.43 (20) 
April 2017 - December 2017 Sold 7,500 3.16 1,005 

 
Natural gas contracts - sensitivity analysis 
 
As at March 31, 2017, if future natural gas prices changed by $0.25 per GJ with all other variables held constant, the fair value of commodity 
price derivatives and after tax net income for the period would change by $0.1 million. Fair value sensitivity was based on published forward 
AECO and NYMEX prices. 
 
Oil contracts 
 
At March 31, 2017, the Company had entered into the following costless collar oil sales arrangements which settle in $USD. 
 

Term 
Volumes at WTI 

(bbls/ d) 
Floor price 

($USD/ bbl) 
Ceiling price 
($USD/ bbl) 

Fair Value             
($ thousands) 

April 2017 – December 2017 250 50.00 61.50 300 
April 2017 – December 2017 500 50.00 59.40 176 

 
At March 31, 2017, the Company had entered into the following oil basis differential contracts between WTI and WCS trading. 
 

Term 
Volumes at WTI 

(bbls/ d) 
 

WTI-WCS differential 
($USD/ bbl) 

Fair Value             
($ thousands) 

April 2017 – December 2017 250  (14.85) (95) 
April 2017 – December 2017 500  (15.40) (281) 
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Oil contracts - sensitivity analysis 
 
As at March 31, 2017, if future oil prices increased by $5.00 per boe with all other variables held constant, the fair value of commodity price 
derivatives and after tax net income for the period would increase by $1.4 million. If future oil prices decreased by $5.00 per boe with all 
other variables held constant, the fair value of commodity price derivatives and after tax net income for the period would decrease by $0.3 
million. Fair value sensitivity was based on published forward WTI and WCS prices. 
 
The following table is a summary of the fair value of the Company’s financial contracts by type: 

 
  
   March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 
Physical natural gas contracts   2,483 1,876 
Financial natural gas contracts   985 4,606 
Financial oil contracts   100 (1,138) 
Financial foreign exchange contracts   – (5,022) 
Fixed portion of retained shallow gas marketing arrangements(1)   (3,769) (4,698) 
Non-fixed portion of retained shallow gas marketing arrangements   652 3,809 
Fair value of derivatives   451 (567) 
     
Derivative assets – current   5,123 8,326 
Derivative assets – non-current   – 2,351 
Derivative liabilities – current   (3,769) (9,221) 
Derivative liabilities – non-current   (903) (2,023) 
Fair value of derivatives   451 (567) 

(1) At March 31, 2017 the term of the put option between the periods of April 1, 2017 and March 31, 2018 was fixed at a cost of $3.8 million which settles 
monthly over the term. This portion of the contract is recorded at amortized cost. During the three months ended March 31, 2017, payments of $0.9 million 
were recorded as a reduction to this liability.  

 
The following table details the Company’s changes in fair value of commodity price derivatives: 

  Three months ended March 31, 
   2017 2016 
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial oil contracts   1,238 (381) 
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial natural gas contracts   (3,621) 5,589 
Unrealized gain on physical natural gas contracts   607 170 
Unrealized gain on forward foreign exchange contracts   5,022 5,635 
Unrealized change in fair value of commodity price derivatives   3,246 11,013 
Realized gain (loss) on financial oil contracts   (973) 1,263 
Realized gain on financial natural gas contracts   5,898 8,004 
Realized loss on forward foreign exchange contracts   (4,178) (1,264) 
Change in fair value of commodity price derivatives   3,993 19,016 

 
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
 
The Company’s fair value measurements are classified as one of the following levels of the fair value hierarchy: 

 
Level 1 – inputs represent unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. An active market is characterized 
by a high volume of transactions that provides pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 
These valuations are based on inputs that can be observed or corroborated in the marketplace, such as market interest rates or forward 
prices for commodities. 

 
Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability are not based on observable market data.  

 
The Company aims to maximize the use of observable inputs when preparing calculations of fair value. Classification of each measurement 
into the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value calculation. 
 
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate 
their carrying amounts due to their short terms to maturity. Bank indebtedness bears interest at a floating market rate and accordingly the 
fair market value approximates the carrying amount.  

 
The fair value of the gas over bitumen royalty financing is estimated by discounting future cash payments based on the forecasted Alberta gas 
reference price multiplied by the contracted deemed volume. This fair value measurement is classified as level 3 as significant unobservable 
inputs, including the discount rate and forecasted Alberta gas reference prices, are used in determination of the carrying amount. The 
discount rate of 12.2% was determined on inception of the agreement based on the characteristics of the instrument. The forecasted Alberta 
gas reference prices for the remaining term are based on AECO forward market pricing with adjustments for historical differences between 
the Alberta reference price and market prices. 
 
The fair value of the TOU share margin loans are estimated using significant unobservable inputs including discount rates and measures of 
future volatility required to fair value the embedded TOU share price put options. This fair value measurement is classified as level 3 as 
significant unobservable inputs, including discount rates and measures of future volatility are used in determination of the carrying amount. 
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The fair value of financial assets and liabilities, excluding working capital, is attributable to the following fair value hierarchy levels: 

 
   

Carrying 
Amount 

Fair value 

As at March 31, 2017 Gross Netting(1) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Financial assets       

Fair value through profit and loss       
 TOU share investment 49,440 – 49,440 49,440 – – 
 Derivatives – current 5,636  (513) 5,123 – 5,123 – 

    Derivatives – non-current 648 (648) – – – – 
       
Financial liabilities       
Financial liabilities at amortized cost       

  Senior Notes – current 27,531 – 27,531 – 27,617 – 
  Senior Notes – non-current 32,310 – 32,310 – 32,830 – 
  Term Loan – non-current 32,988 – 32,988 – – 32,988 

Fair value through profit and loss       
  Derivatives – current 4,282 (513) 3,769 – 3,769 – 
  Derivatives – non-current 1,551 (648) 903 – 903 – 

Gas over bitumen royalty financing – current 2,682 – 2,682 – – 2,682 
Gas over bitumen royalty financing – non-current 3,607 – 3,607 – – 3,607 
TOU share margin loans – current 35,039 – 35,039 – – 35,039 

(1) Derivative assets and liabilities presented in the statement of financial position are shown net of offsetting assets or liabilities where the arrangement 
provides for the legal right and intention for net settlement exists. 
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